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Characteristics of the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”)
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Exchange”)
BEEBHEXZMBERL A ([BEA])BIZR ([BIFER]) 2K E

GEM has been established as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a high investment risk
may be attached. In particular, companies may list on GEM
with neither a track record of profitability nor any
obligation to forecast future profitability. Furthermore,
there may be risks arising out of the emerging nature of
companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or
countries in which the companies operate. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk
profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated
investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities trade on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board of the Exchange and no assurance is
given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM
is publication on the internet website operated by the
Exchange. Listed companies are not generally required to
issue paid announcement in gazetted newspapers.
Accordingly, prospective investors should note that they
need to have access to the GEM website at
www.hkgem.com in order to obtain up to date information
on GEM-listed issuers.

The Exchange takes no responsibility for the contents of this
annual report, makes no representation as to its accuracy or
completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or
any part of the contents of this annual report.

This annual report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of
Sau San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
the compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for
the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company.
The Directors of the Company, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief:

(1)  the information contained in this annual report is accurate
and complete in all material respects and not misleading;

(2) there are no other matters the omission of which would
make any statement in this annual report misleading, and

(3) all opinions expressed in this annual report have been
arrived at after due and careful consideration and are
founded on the bases and assumptions that are fair and
reasonable.
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Corporate Profile 22 &]# 77

Founded in July 2000, Sau San Tong Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) have established itself as the leading
beauty and slimming services providers in Hong Kong and
Mainland China over the past seven years through the
introduction of a series of innovative health and beauty treatment
and products as well as the provision of the most professional
and attentive slimming and trimming solution to its customers.
The Group was listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock Code: 8200) in
November 2003 and is the first listed slimming and beauty
company in Hong Kong.

The Group has seven slimming and beauty centres with three in
Hong Kong and four in Mainland China including two in
Shanghai, one in Shenzhen and one in Hangzhou. All these
centers provide unique all-rounded personalized slimming and
beauty services, which include the VIP Slimming Programmes,
“Nursing Slimming Service”, “Pilate Self-Active Bodyline”, “Anti-
Aging” and the latest “Anaplastic Cosmetology” programmes.
Combining the effective treatments and comprehensive follow
up, all programmes enable customers to achieve their desired
skin quality, weight and body shape in the healthiest manner.

The Group has been widely recognized and highly praised for its
outstanding products and services and received numerous
accolades during the years of which included “Top Service Award”
of Next Magazine, “PRC Tourists — My Best HK Brand” by China
Enterprise Reputation & Credibility Association and “Hong Kong
Top Ten Brand Names Award” by Chinese Manufacturers’
Association of Hong Kong etc..

To further diversify its businesses, the Group has acquired a
distribution business in Mainland China in September 2005 who
distributes P&G’s personal care products in Shanghai and cosmetic
and skin care products with famous brands like SK-Il and Olay in
the eastern and western part of Mainland China. Although the
SK-II brand has been challenged by the PRC authority in
September 2006, the Group is confident that sales of SK-II will
be accelerated after short-term psychological barriers.
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In October 2006, the Group has successfully open a beauty and
slimming centre in Vancouver, Canada. This marked a crucial
start for the Group’s new type of business, namely, the
management consultation service. The characteristic of this
business is that a fee will be received for the using of our brand
name and logo and subsequently a monthly management fee
will also be received based on the turnover or profit of such
beauty centre. Unlike the previous beauty and slimming centres
which required heavy investment initially, this business model
secured the Group’s income in the first day of the project.
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Financial Summary 817 #f £

2007

For the year ended 31 March
BE=ZA=t—HLFE
2006 2005 2004 2003

=BREtFE —TERE —_TTRF —_ZTTENHFE —TT=F

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FA&E T FAET FAET FAET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (&5 (=5)
(Note)
(Htat)
Turnover = 443,588 358,650 141,709 135,653 58,945
Gross profit E | 95,424 82,287 123,628 110,360 49,330
(Loss)/profit from KL (ER)
operations bl (8,050) (64,534) 18,546 29,124 4,703
(Loss)/profit attributable NN
to equity holders B AEMh
of the Company (B18B) &7 (21,457) (59,901) 31,123 27,426 2,921
Non-current assets FERBEE 19,978 23,385 21,801 13,531 6,786
Goodwill s 250 177 140 439 581
Current assets mENE E 88,265 73,425 90,897 63,218 11,686
Current liabilities mE B E (82,553) (61,300) (21,479) (19,140) (8,263)
Non-current liabilities EREBE (232) — — (222) (782)
Minority interests DERRERER (16,636) (5,331) 42 (413) (296)
Equity attributable to RA AR
equity holders A AEMA
of the Company 1 2 9,072 30,356 91,401 57,413 9,712
Note: Bt -
The summary of the financial information as at 31 March 2003 has been E@:T Z=F=HA=1T—AZHMBEHBRE  IHER

extracted from the accountants’ report included in the Company's
prospectus dated 10 November 2003 (the “Prospectus”). The above
financial information has been prepared as if the group structure at the
date of the listing of the Company’s shares on 19 November 2003 had
been in existence and remained unchange throughout the above periods.
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Chairman’s Statement F /Z# &

| am pleased to present the annual results to the shareholders of
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2007 (the “Year Under
Review").

The past financial year was a year full of challenges to the Group.
The general price war in Hong Kong has undercut the profit, the
beauty and slimming centres in Shenzhen and Hangzhou are still
in its infant stages which means more time and efforts were
devoted to these two centres in order to firmly establish their
local presence. The SK-Il brand, one of the major brands which
our Group engaged in its product distribution in part of the PRC,
was challenged by the PRC authority in using harmful elements.

However, our Group was able to overcome all the setbacks above.
In Hong Kong, besides slimming services, we have launched many
other types of non-slimming beauty services since we realize that
a slim body must be matched by overall beauty. The customers’
response was positive since they acknowledge our high-quality
brand name. In the coming year, we would continue to position
ourselves not only as a slimming leader but also a general beauty
service provider.

For the Shenzhen and Hangzhou centres, they have already passed
the infant stage in the first three quarters of the Year Under
Review with properly trained-up local professionals and start to
contribute a slice of profit during the final quarter of the Year
Under Review while for SK-II, the PRC authority has subsequently
clarify the above mentioned matter and sales of SK-Il is now
under recovery.

During the Year Under Review, the Group’s turnover reached
approximately HK$443,588,000, an increase of 24% compared
to HK$358,650,000 during the corresponding period last year.
Turnover generated from the beauty and slimming centers in
Hong Kong and in Mainland China amounted to approximately
HK$91,090,000, an increase of 17% compared to corresponding
period in 2006. For the product distribution business in Mainland
China, the turnover amounted to approximately HK$348,249,000,
compared to approximately HK$270,175,000 in the corresponding
period in last year (acquired since September 2005).
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Chairman’s Statement F /& # &

During the Year Under Review, although our Group have incurred
a loss attributable to shareholders of approximately
HK$21,457,000, this was a substantial and remarkable
improvement from the corresponding loss of approximately
HK$59,901,000 in the Year 2005-2006. Thanks to the effort
from all staff of our Group to boost sales and the strict cost
control implemented. The reduction in the magnitude of loss
attributable to the shareholders reflected our ability to adapt to
adverse situation which allowed us to rebound within one year
time.

In addition to overcome various problems as mentioned above,
the Group has actively considered potential new income stream.
During the Year Under Review, we were delighted to have our
Canada beauty centre opened (the “Canada Centre”). The
operational model of Canada Centre was different from the
existing beauty centres of our Group. We used to invest
substantial sums for decoration and beauty machinery, though
to be shared by minority shareholder while for the Canada Centre,
it was operated by a third party using our brand name and logo.
Surely, our Group must provide relevant training and tutorials to
the staff of that third party to ensure adequate and professional
quality to the customers there. In return to the usage of logo
and training provided, the Group received a one-off service fee
which has been recognized as income during the Year Under
Review. Therefore, the Group was able to secure an income
stream in the early stage of Canada Centre while for the existing
beauty centres, it generally required one year or more in order
to pay back for the capital expenditure. With the success of the
Canada Centre, the Group believed and expected that such
management consultation services to be one of the major revenue
drivers of the Group for the foreseeable future.

During the Year Under Review, the Group’s beauty and slimming
centers in Mainland China has shown an impressive growth. The
success of the new beauty centres in Shenzhen and Hangzhou
has also strengthen the Group’s confidence in opening new
beauty centres in the PRC. Therefore, besides maintaining the
growth of the existing beauty centres, the Group will actively
explore possibilities in opening new beauty and slimming centres
in the major cities in the PRC to capture the untapped market
and to make the Group’s brand to be a generally recognized
brand in the PRC.
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Chairman’s Statement F /Z# &

Over the years, the “Sau San Tong” brandname is firmly
established in both Hong Kong and the PRC with services and
treatments that leads the beauty and slimming industry. During
the Year Under Review the Group was awarded “Yahoo! Emotive
Brand Award” in May 2006, “Most Favourable Hong Kong Brands
2006" by China Enterprise Reputation & Credibility Association
in June 2006, “Top Service Award” of Next Magazine in July
2006 and “2007 Consumers’ Brand of First Choice of Slimming
Services in China Market” by China Market Consuming Tendency
Research Committee in January 2007. All these awards and
recognitions helped the Group in strengthening its corporate
image in Hong Kong as well as in Mainland China.

The Group excelled by the ability to stay ahead of the market.
Over the years, the Group has introduced many innovative beauty
and slimming products to Hong Kong. These beauty and slimming
products enables the Group to gain additional market share as
well as strengthened its brandname. For the years to come, the
Group will continue its effort in the product distribution market,
especially in the Mainland China. In fact, the Group at present
already have the distribution network of Shanghai Dong Fang Ri
Hua Sales Co. Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company mainly
distributing P&G personal care products in Shanghai and P&G's
cosmetic and skin care products , including SK-II and Olay in the
eastern and western part of the PRC. As the market shows
immense potential for quality beauty and skincare products
together with the widening of the product range under P&G,
the management is confident that this business segment of the
Group will become a revenue driver in the coming years.

On behalf of the board of Directors, | would like to express my
sincere gratitude to our shareholders, customers, staff and
business partners for their support and trust to the Group. With
our persistent effort, | am confident that the Group will achieve
steady growth in the future and provide satisfactory return for
all shareholders.

Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley
Chairman
Hong Kong, 20 June 2007
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Management Discussion and Analysis & #2 /g 7 i

Business Review

For the year ended 31 March 2007 (“the Year Under Review"),
turnover amounted to approximately HK$443,588,000,
representing an 24% increase from approximately
HK$358,650,000 in last year. Such increase was mainly
contributed by the improved performance of our slimming centres
in both Hong Kong and in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") and the contribution by Shanghai Dong Fang Ri Hua
Sales Co. Ltd. (“Dong Fang”), a subsidiary of the Company since
September 2005. Dong Fang is engaged in the distribution of
P&G's personal care products in Shanghai and P&G’'s cosmetic
and skin care products, including SK-II in the eastern and western
part of PRC. Turnover from such distribution business amounted
to approximately HK$348,249,000 during the Year Under Review
(2006: approximately HK$270,175,000).

During the Year Under Review, turnover generated from all the
slimming centres in Hong Kong and in the PRC amounted to
approximately HK$91,090,000 (2006: approximately
HK$77,600,000). Such increase was mainly contributed by the
impressive performance of our beauty and slimming centres in
the PRC, together with the opening of our Hangzhou centre in
June 2006 and the general rebound in the local market. Such
encouraging results once again provided a solid proof of
customer’s recognition of the Group’s brand and quality.

During the Year Under Review, the Group recorded an increase
of approximately HK$13,137,000 in gross profit. In addition to
the improved turnover as mentioned above, the increased
efficiency and the recognition of income from the provision of
management consultation services (more details in the section
“Qutlook” below) have all contributed to such increase in gross
profit.

The Group has incurred a loss attributable to equity holders of
the Company of approximately HK$21,457,000. Nevertheless,
such loss represented a dramatic and radical reduction of 64%
when compared with a loss of approximately HK$59,901,000 in
last year. In fact, those business segments with loss during the
first three quarters has started to profit in the final quarter,
especially the beauty and slimming services segment (including
both Hong Kong and the PRC), with profit of approximately
HK$1,940,000 in the final quarter. The implication is crucial as
this has proved that the Group’s formulated strategy during the
Year under Review was correct. Such strategies included the
exploring of new revenue stream such as management
consultation services while adopting vigorous cost control as
reflected from the substantial reduction of administrative expenses
from approximately HK$52,467,000 to approximately
HK$45,505,000 during the Year Under Review, notwithstanding
the increased number of subsidiary.

R % 1]
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Management Discussion and Analysis & #2 g 5 i & 75 4T

Outlook KK JEE

Beauty and Slimming Centres EZRRERD O

For Hong Kong, the Group has been aware of the market HE&H®E @ AN&EE3 ‘%iJm%ifﬁwﬁzﬁ’ilEh
misconception that our Group provides only slimming services RIS ZRF -  BHE  FHERSELAEE
while in fact, the proportion of non-slimming services have WAZHEBREN - fr—RI2EES LRER
accounted for increasing proportion of the Group's income. In  BRR_ZEZNFHH Z [MEEE I 0 AEE
addition to a range of comprehensive beauty and health services EIREHHEFEZRN - DEEBASEREASBR

and the “Anti-aging program” launch in 2006, the Group has
decided to launch the anaplastic cosmetology which directly inject
botox tissue filler onto skins instead of conventional surgery which
will cause destructive effect on skin structure. Customers can be
benefited from having the desired shapes without physical pains
and without side effect. With the above-mentioned advantage,
the Group is optimistic on this new type of service which in turn
will strengthen the profitability of the Group.

For PRC, due to economic boom in the PRC, the citizens there
are more affordable and more willing to pay for beauty and
health of her own. This benefit the beauty and slimming centres
of our Group, as shown by our strong performance of our PRC
beauty and slimming centres. As the Group expects the prosperity
in the PRC will continue, the Group is actively seeking
opportunities to open new beauty and slimming centres in major
cities in the PRC in order to capture the untapped market.

Management Consultation Services

Being the leading beauty and slimming services provider, our
Group has accumulated a wealth of experience in the
management and operation of beauty and slimming centres as
well as high caliber professionals from the industry. In order to
capitalize its existing resources, the Group has embarked the
provision of management consultation services for the setting up
beauty and slimming centres.

In June 2006, the Group has entered into an agreement under
which management consultation services are to be provided for
the setting up of a beauty and slimming centre in Canada which
was subsequently open in early October and was the focus of
local and Canada media. In general, the service scope of the
above agreement includes, scouting of premises, licenses
application, legal and financial advises, staff training, management
and operation.

In January 2007, the Group has entered into an agreement under
which management consultation services are to be provided for
the operation of a spa and massage centre in Shenzhen. The
centre is in the preparation stage and is expected to commence
its business in July 2007.

T BN S - MRS H N EEBRERBREETE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B E &

The above encouraging start has further strengthened the
confidence of the Group in this kind of new business. The Group
also believes that there will be an immense demand for this kind
of services in the PRC since the beauty and slimming market
there is still under developed with a shortage of expertise. Also,
provision of this kind of services command not much overhead
costs and thus contributing to a positive revenue growth to the
Group.

Health and Beauty Products

During the past years, the Group’s ability to introduce innovative
and quality products has earned a leading status in the Hong
Kong market. Besides Hong Kong, the Group is planning the
distribution of health and beauty products to the major cities in
the PRC, with satisfactory progress. The management believes by
leveraging on “Sau San Tong” brand name and the customer
confidence built up over the prior years, these health and beauty
products will be well received in the market bringing forth an
additional revenue stream for the Group.

Distribution Business in the PRC

In September 2006, the SK-II brand was being challenged by the
PRC authority in the using of chromium and neodymium which
can cause skin allergies and other health problems. The PRC
government has subsequently announced that small amounts of
such elements will not cause harms to human. Unfortunately,
the pace of recovery of SK-Il sales is not as fast as the Group
expected which limited the level of profit derived from Dong
Fang during the Year Under Review. However, the Group firmly
believed that the pace of recovery was solely limited by short-
term psychological barriers so that SK-II will resume it's position
in the PRC market soon. Looking forward, as the PRC market
continues to boom showing immense potential for P&G products,
the management anticipates the revenues generated from the
distribution business will experience further growth and will in

turn provide the Group with stable source of income.
Capital structure, liquidity and financial resources

Cash and bank balances as at 31 March 2007 were approximately
HK$20,533,000 compared to approximately HK$21,005,000 as
at 31 March 2006. The Group's gearing ratio of 43% (2006:
zero) was based on the total of bank borrowings and obligations
under finance leases of approximately HK$11,176,000 and the
net assets of the Group of approximately HK$25,708,000.

As at 31 March 2007, the Group’s liability was approximately
HK$82,785,000, compared to approximately HK$61,300,000 as
at 31 March 2006. Such liability are intended to be financed by
internal resources of the Group.
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Treasury policy

The Group adopts a conservative approach towards its treasury
policies. The Group evaluates the financial condition of its
customers regularly so as to reduce the credit risk. The average
outstanding days of the Group’s accounts receivable was
maintained at below 90 days. To manage liquidity risk, the Group
closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure the
liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and
commitments and to ensure that the Group can meet its funding
requirements.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Since the Group’s assets and liabilities, revenue and payments
are mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and Renminbi,
the Groups considers that there was no significant exposure to
foreign exchange fluctuations.

Net Assets

As at 31 March 2007, the Group's net assets amounted to
approximately HK$25,708,000 compared to approximately
HK$35,687,000 as at 31 March 2006. Except for those assets
charged in the obligations under finance lease, there are no
other charges on the Group’s assets as at 31 March 2007.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2007, the Company had given a corporate
guarantee to a finance company in respect of the finance lease
facilities of approximately HK$1,748,000 granted to a subsidiary.
As at 31 March 2006, a subsidiary had given a corporate
guarantee to a bank in respect of banking facilities of
approximately RMB1,500,000 granted to a shareholder of this
subsidiary. This guarantee was subsequently released in November
2006. Save as disclosed above, there were no other material
contingent liabilities.

Employee Information

As at 31 March 2007, the Group had 433 employees (2006:
around 500 employees). During the year, the Group’s total staff
costs amounted to approximately HK$40,201,000 (2006:
approximately HK$45,343,000). Pursuant to the share option
scheme adopted by the Company, share options have been
granted to eligible participants to subscribe for shares in the
Company under the terms and conditions stipulated therein.
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The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated on the basis
of the performance and experience of individual employee and
are in line with local market practices where the Group operates.
In addition to salary, the Group also offers to its employees
other fringe benefits including provident fund and medical
benefits. The Group has a share option scheme whereby qualified
participants may be granted options to acquire shares of the
Company. There is an aggregate of 30,090,000 outstanding
options to subscribe for 30,090,000 shares of the Company
pursuant to the share option scheme as at 31 March 2007.

Significant Investments and Acquisitions

In June 2006, the Group established a beauty and slimming centre
in Hangzhou (“Hangzhou Centre”), a wholly owned foreign
enterprise, for a term of 10 years. Hangzhou Centre’'s registered
capital is HK$3.5 million. The Group has injected capital of
approximately HK$0.5 million up to 31 March 2007 and the
remaining are expected to be injected within the coming financial
year.

The capital contribution will be funded by internal resources of
the Group.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile ZF Rk m R & A 5 /B FE

Directors
Executive Directors

Dr. CHEUNG Yuk Shan, Shirley, aged 32, is the Chairman and
Founder of the Group. She established the Group seven years
ago and successfully developed it to a group with over 400 staff.
Dr. Cheung is responsible for the overall stewardship of the Group
which includes directions and formulating strategies. Leading the
Group to a new height, she achieved various accomplishments
complimenting her management style and innovative promotional
strategies. Dr. Cheung received the Honour Award of the
Innovative Entrepreneur of the Year 2004 of the Hong Kong
district, organised by the City Junior Chamber in May 2004. In
November of the same year, Dr. Cheung was awarded as one of
the “100 Outstanding Women Entrepreneurs in China” by the
“Women Entrepreneurs’ Association of China”. She is also one
of the few Hong Kong awardees and one of the youngest
awarded entrepreneurs. Furthermore, she was invited to be one
of the deputy chairmen of the “China Foreign Trade Council”
and the honourary president of the “Federation of Beauty Industry
(Hong Kong)".

Mr. CHEUNG Ka Heng, Frankie, aged 34, is an Executive
Director. He is responsible for the business development and
administration of the Group. Mr. Cheung holds a master degree
in business administration from Americus University of the United
States. Prior to joining the Group in June 2002, he was the
director of Vicorp Credit Services Limited, a company which
provides credit information, commencing from September 1999.
Mr. Cheung is the elder brother of Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley.

Mr. LEE Man Kwong, aged 52, is an Executive Director and
joined the Group in March 2006. He is mainly responsible for
the formulation of business strategy and provide legal advice to
the Group. He has been practising as a solicitor in Hong Kong
for over 21 years and is a partner at Messrs. Chan, Lau & Wai,
Solicitors. He is also a solicitor qualified in England and Wales
and Singapore. Mr. Lee was an independent non-executive
director of Mei Ah Entertainment Group Limited between 1993
and October 2004 and had various directorships in listed
companies in Hong Kong in prior years.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. HONG Po Kui, Martin, aged 57, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director and joined the Group in June 2002. He is
responsible for giving advices to the board of Directors and
shareholders of the Company. Mr. Hong is a practicing solicitor
and a notary public in Hong Kong. He has been practicing as a
solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong for over 31 years and is
the senior partner of Messrs Lau, Chan & Ko, Solicitors. He holds
a bachelor degree in science from University of New South Wales.
Mr. Hong is an independent non-executive director of Simsen
International Corporation Limited and Fulbond Holdings Limited,
companies listed on the Main Board of the Exchange, as well as
the commissioner of Hong Kong Road Safety Patrol.

Mr. LI Kuo Hsing, aged 48, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director and joined the Group in June 2002. He is the Vice
Chairman of the Federation of Motion Film Producers of Hong
Kong Limited since 1998 and appointed Member of the Election
Committee for the Performing Arts sub-sector of the Legislative
Council Election. Mr. Li is the founder and chairman of Mei Ah
Entertainment Group Limited and an Executive Director of BIG
Media Group Limited, companies listed on the Main Board and
GEM Board of the Exchange respectively.

Mr. HO Yiu Ming, aged 63, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director and joined the Group in September 2003. Mr. Ho has
extensive experience in the auditing and accounting fields. He is
a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
the Association of International Accountants and an Associate of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He
has been the managing partner of Billy Ho and Company, Certified
Public Accountants, since 1984. Mr. Ho is an independent
nonexecutive director of Kantone Holdings Limited and Jade
Dynasty Group Limited, companies listed on the Main Board of
the Exchange and DIGITALHONGKONG.COM, a company listed
on GEM of the Exchange.

Senior Management

Mr. SIT Hon Wing, aged 30, is the Financial Controller, Qualified
Accountant and Company Secretary of the Group. Mr. Sit is
responsible for overseeing the accounting and financial
management and company secretarial functions of the Group.
He is an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Sit joined the Group in June 2006 and has
accumulated over seven years of accounting and auditing
experience.
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Corporate Governance Report it &8 %

Introduction

The Company puts strong emphasis on the superiority, steadiness
and rationality of corporate governance. Subject to the deviations
as disclosed in this report, the Company has complied with all
the provisions in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “Code"”) as set out in the GEM Listing Rules by establishing
a formal and transparent procedures to protect and maximize
the interests of shareholders during the year.

Directors’ Securities Transaction

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of
the GEM listing rules. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, they all confirmed having complied with the required
standard of dealings and the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors adopted by the Group.

The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) currently comprises six
directors, including three executive directors and three
independent non-executive directors. The Board is mainly
accountable to the shareholders. It is also in charge of the
management, business strategy, annual and interim results, risk
management, major acquisitions, disposals and capital
transactions and other major operational and financial aspects
of the Group. Major corporate matters that are specifically
delegated by the Board to the management include the
preparation of annual and interim accounts for board approval
before publishing, execution of business strategies and initiatives
adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate systems of
internal controls and risk management procedures, and
compliance with relevant statutory requirements and rules and
regulations.

Details of backgrounds and qualifications of the members of the
Board are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management
Profile” of this annual report. All Directors have given sufficient
time and attention to the affairs of the Group. Each executive
director has sufficient experience to hold the position so as to
carry out his duties effectively and efficiently.

The Board fulfilled the minimum requirement of appointing at
least three independent non-executive directors throughout the
year. It also met the requirement of having one independent
non-executive director with appropriate professional qualification
or professional accounting or financial management expertise
throughout the year.
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Each of the independent non-executive directors have entered
into a service contract with the Company for a term expiring on
31 July 2006, with the term being renewed for a further term of
one year commencing from 1 August 2006.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from each independent non-executive directors and therefore
still considers them to be independent.

Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie, an executive director, is the elder
brother of Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley, the chairman. Save as
diclosed above, there is no relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship) among
members of the Board.

During the year, the Board held four meetings. The details of the
attendance rate of each director are as follows:
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Attendance at

Board meeting Attendance rate

Name of directors EEpE EESHERH HE =
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley ik 8 + 4/4 100%
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie REEEE 4/4 100%
Mr. Lee Man Kwong BXHEE 4/4 100%
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin RE L& 3/4 75%
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing Z B 5T A 2/4 50%
Mr. Ho Yiu Ming fa] ¥R BRS¢ A4 4/4 100%
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer F R AT B A

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley assumes the role of both the
chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company. While
serving as the chairman of the Group, Dr. Cheung leads the
Board and is responsible for the proceedings and workings of
the Board. The role of chairman and chief executive officer of
the Group rests on the same individual which deviates from the
Code of not having a clear division of responsibilities.

The Board is of the view that it is in the best interests of the
Group to have Dr. Cheung, who is the founder of the Group
with vast and solid experience in the beauty sector, to perform
the dual role so that the Board can have the benefit of a chairman
who is knowledgeable about the business of the Group and is
most capable to guide discussions and brief the Board in a timely
manner on pertinent issues. With Dr. Cheung being the chief
executive officer, the Group can also benefit from having strong
connection and network in the beauty market.
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Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee in compliance
with Rules 5.28 and 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are: to independent review and
supervise the financial reporting process and internal control
systems, to ensure good communications among Directors and
the Company’s auditors, to recommend the appointment of
external auditors on an annual basis and approval of the audit
fees, to assist the Board in oversight of the independence,
qualifications, performance and compensation of the independent
accountant, to review quarterly, interim and annual results
announcements as well as the financial statements prior to their
approval by the Board, to provide advice on audit report,
accounting policies and comments to all Directors.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors including Mr. Li Kuo Hsing (Chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr. Ho Yiu Ming and Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin.
During the year, the Audit Committee held four meetings to
assess the effectiveness of internal control system, to review all
draft annual, quarterly and interim financial reports, and to know
about external auditors’ statutory audit plan. The attendance
records of the audit committee meetings are set out below:

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing

2 [ B 5 A

Mr. Ho Yiu Ming

fa] 48 BA 55 4=

Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin
BB Bt &

Auditors’ Remuneration

The audit committee of the Company is responsible for
considering the appointment of the external auditor and reviewing
any non-audit functions performed by the external auditor,
including whether such non-audit functions could lead to any
potential material adverse effect on the Company. During the
year, auditors’ remuneration for audit services (inclusive of
taxation services) is HK$842,000. Save as disclosed above, no
services such as due diligence and other advisory services were
provided during the year.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Group was established in
accordance with the Code. The main role and function included
the determination of the specific remuneration packages of all
Executive Directors, including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, any compensation payable for loss
or termination of their office or appointment. The Remuneration
Committee should consider factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of
the Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group
and desirability of performance-based remuneration.

Members of the Remuneration Committee include three
independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Ho Yiu Ming
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Hong Po Kui,
Martin and Mr. Li Kuo Hsing.

The Remuneration Committee has held one meeting to consider
and approve (i) the remuneration of the Directors for the year
ending 31 March 2008, (ii) salary adjustment of the management
of the Group; and (iii) range of salary adjustment of employees
of the Group. The attendance record of the Remuneration
Committee meeting is set out below:

Mr. Ho Yiu Ming (Chairman)
AR SE £ (F /&)

Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin
FREHEE

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing
B A A

Nomination of Directors

The Board is empowered under the Company’s Articles of
Association to appoint any person as a director either to fill a
casual vacancy on or, subject to authorization by the shareholders
of the Company in general meeting, as an additional member of
the Board. Qualified candidates will be proposed to the Board
for consideration and the selection criteria are mainly based on
the assessment of their professional qualifications and experience.
The Board selects and recommends candidates for directorship
having regard to the balance of skills and experience appropriate
to the Group’s business.
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Responsibility of Preparation of the Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility of preparing the
financial statements of the Company. As at 31 March 2007, the
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties or events
which may have a significant impact on the Company’s ability to
operate as an on-going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have
prepared the financial statements of the Company on an on-
going concern basis. The responsibility of the auditors with respect
to financial reporting are set out in the Report of the Auditors in
this annual report.

Internal Control Systems

The Company has conducted a review of its system of internal
control periodically to ensure an effective and adequate internal
control system exists. The Company convened meeting periodically
to discuss financial, operational and risk management control.
The Directors consider that the Company has implemented a
series of procedures for safeguarding the Company’s assets
against unauthorised use or misappropriation, maintaining
accounting records properly and ensuring the reliability of financial
information.

TR T A 2 JAE

ESHRBEESERIRBACRA M BEHREK - =
EE+F=RA=+—H EFWTABEMATRER
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o it EFERFELEEERUARR 2
BWK - RBMBEBM TR R EEHRRAFHX
BENRENA ©
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting the directors’ report
together with the audited financial statements of the Company
and the Group for the year ended 31 March 2007.

The Company was incorporated in Cayman Islands on 21 May
2002 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands and its shares have been listed on
The Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM") of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 19 November
2003

Principal Activities

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of beauty and
slimming services from slimming centres, distribution sales of
cosmetic and skin care products and sale of other health and
beauty products. The slimming centres, which are operated under
the “Sau San Tong” brand name, provide services such as whole
and partial body slimming, weight management, body treatment
services and facial treatment services to its customers.

Results

Details of the results and cash flow of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2007, and the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at that date, are set out in the financial
statements on pages 35 to 90.

Subsequent events

Details of subsequent events are set out in note 36 to the financial
statements on page 90.

Dividends

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend
(2006: Nil).

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
minority interests of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out on page 4. The summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of

the Group are set out in note 16 to the financial statements on
page 70.
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Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are
set out in note 27 to the financial statements on page 79

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in note 29 to the financial statements and in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 84.

Distributable Reserves

Pursuant to the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, share premium
and contributed surplus of the Company are distributable to the
shareholders. As at 31 March 2007, the Company has no reserves
available for distribution to shareholders.

Segment Information

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
and geographical segment is set out in note 7 to the financial
statements on pages 60 to 62.

Share Option Information

A summary of the share option scheme and details of the
movements in share options of the Company during the year are
set out in note 28 to the financial statements on pages 79 to 83.

Directors

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie
Mr. Lee Man Kwong

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Ho Yiu Ming
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie and Mr. Hong Po Kui,
Martin will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin, Mr. Li Kuo Hsing and Mr. Ho Yiu
Ming as at the date of this annual report and therefore still
considers them to be independent.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group as at the date of this annual report
are set out on pages 18 to 19.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley and Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie
each has entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of three years commencing 4 November 2003 and will
continue thereafter for successive term of one year unless and
until terminate by not less than six months’ notice in writing
served by either party to the other provided that such notice
period shall not expire at any time during the first 12 calendar
months of the term of the appointment.

Mr. Lee Man Kwong has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a term of two years commencing 20 March
2006, which can be terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party to the other.

Each of these Executive Directors is entitled to a basic salary and
a discretionary bonus provided that the aggregate amount of
the bonuses payable to all the Executive Directors for any financial
year of the Company may not exceed 10% of the audited
consolidated net profit of the Group (after taxation and minority
interest but before extraordinary and exceptional items of the
Group) in respect of the financial year.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors have been appointed
for a term expiring on 31 July 2006 with the term being renewed
for a further term of one year commencing from 1 August 2006.
Save for a total fee of approximately HK$121,000 for all of them
for the year ended 31 March 2007, the Independent Non-
Executive Directors are not entitled to any other remuneration.
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts

As at 31 March 2007, the Company has an amount due to Dr.
Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley of approximately HK$5,585,000, details
of which is set out in note 22 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance subsisting during or at the end of the financial year
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions
in Shares

As at 31 March 2007, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company or their
respective associates in shares and underlying shares (the
“Shares”) of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO")) which are required to be notified to the Company
and the Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO, including interests and/or short positions which they
are deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO,
or which will be required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant
to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:

Long position in shares of the Company:

Number of shares

#HEZ G

R-BZLE=F=+—H  AQAFEMEEME
+ 7 FRIBH 45,585,000/ 7T © HEFIEH N KR
RBEFFE22 ©

B EXPTR BT ESN  EEMER AR RS E K

BRBMAT MR AR BEEARGEREIDAFE
ZEMBERENTERIFMERERENES -

HHFRELETHEN BRIR A 2 Wk R kA

R-ZFZELF=-A=1+—8 ARAEFRTET
BA %‘X L% B ZBBALTRAR RSB EE
(i% xR EED ([E5 R BRI EXV

)ZHﬂﬁmaEﬁﬁxfﬁ(rﬁxfﬁJ)Etwﬁm:é /N
B MAREZEFRBEGENEXVIEEIRESD
HREMEARAAG BRI (REREESFRPE
GHlzEBIEX EWRANEIERE 2 ERZ R,/
FAR) HBEBSFRHE KRG FE 3521518 E
C %JM%EJ%*&ﬁE%EEIJ%5.46i5.671€§$ﬁu<—§
ARB REZEMDT ¢

RARRRMDZHFR :

Approximate

R#% &8 percentage of
interest in the
Company'’s issued
share capital
Corporate Personal LEDAF N
Name of Director interests interests Total 2 B®TRAK
EEgE AT ERE (PN £ Y EEZHBABIHL
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley 293,200,000 81,070,000 374,270,000 56.12%
ok & 8 4 (Note 1)
(Kiat1)
Note 1. Wiz -

The 293,200,000 shares were held by Biochem Investments Limited
(“Biochem™), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability. The entire issued share capital of Biochem is wholly owned
by Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley.

41 293,200,000/% }% 15 H Biochem Investments Limited
(TBiochem]) # % » Biochem& — MR EB R L B & fh
X2 BRRAF] ° BiochemZ & %8B 817 IR A | 5K £ HiHE
+T2EHSE -
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Long position in underlying shares of the Company:
Share Option Scheme

The interests in the underlying shares of the Company arise from
share options granted to the Directors of the Company under
the Company’s share option scheme, details of which are as
follows:

RARABBEERG 2R
BIRE S

AABEBEBD 2 KA AR RIREBERE S
BRYARARES2HBERE  EFBHET

Approximate

percentage
Aggregate interest in the
Long position in  Company’s issued
underlying Shares share capital
Subscription  of the Company NG|
Price per share iV NN BRIRA
Name of Director Date of grant Exercisable period =1 HER G H BRZBH
EEpER BT¥EH TS ARE BREZEY Bl
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, 10 September 2004 10 September 2004 — HK$0.512 5,000,000 0.75%
Shirley —TTMFENATA 3 November 2013 0.512% T
REMRE L “TTNFENATHE
“E-=f+-H=H
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, 10 September 2004 10 September 2004 — HK$0.512 5,000,000 0.75%
Frankie —TTMFENA+A 3 November 2013 0.512% 7T
REELE —ZEMFEAATRE
“E-=f+-H=H
Note 1: HtaEr -

The above interest constitutes a long position of the Director in a physically
settled equity derivative for the purpose of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2007, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates has any personal, family, corporate or other interests
or short positions in the Shares of the Company or its associated
(within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant to the
minimum standard of dealings by Directors of the Company as
referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, are
required to be notified to the Company and the Exchange.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares

As at 31 March 2007, so far was known to any Directors or chief
executive of the Company, the following interests of which would
fall to be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or who were deemed to be directly or indirectly interested
in 5% or more of the issued capital of the Company, or which
were recorded in the register of interests required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO or have notified to the Company
were as follows:

Long position in Shares:

3 BRI Z B 7k e KT

R-ZEBLF=A=+—H AR REMESEXK
EEBTBABMA - NIESREERE S RS EA
EXVEE2RFEINFMATHE - AR BEESK
BEEERAAEBITRAS%E A £ - kAL
RREBEZBFNAERIIEBHRREFEZLERE
sk AmERARENT

Rp 23R -

Number of shareholding

BEREE

Number

of share

options held

Substantial shareholder Capacity Share Percentage g

FERR 5% % 12 Bot BREZE

Biochem Beneficial owner 293,200,000 43.96% —
E=mEB A

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley Beneficial owner 81,070,000 12.16% 5,000,000
ok & I+ Emi#EE A

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures O I B A 2R 2 A

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares” above, at no
time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or children under 18
years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Competing Interests

None of the Directors or substantial shareholders of the Company
or their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
has any interest in a business which compete or might compete
with the business of the Group.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities of the

Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, purchases from the Group'’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 97.36% (2006: 93.74%) of the total purchases
for the year and purchases from the largest supplier included
therein amounted to 48.17% (2006: 54.99%). Sales to the
Group's five largest customers accounted for 21.49% (2006:
16.72%) of the total sales for the year.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates
or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers.

Principal Subsidiaries

The activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note
17 to the financial statements.

Charitable Donations

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$200,000.

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

Audit Committee

The Group has established an audit committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Details of the role and work performed by the
committee are set out in “Corporate Governance Report” in this
annual report.
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Code of Conduct Regarding Securities Transactions by

Directors

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Director on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors have complied
with the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Auditors
The accounts were audited by CCIF CPA Limited. A resolution to

re-appoint the retiring auditors, CCIF CPA Limited, is to be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 June 2007
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®

CCIF

CCIF CPA LIMITED

20th Floor
Sunning Plaza
10 Hysan Avenue
Causeway Bay Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sau
San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 35 to
90, which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets
as at 31 March 2007, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

DIRECTORS”
STATEMENTS

RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of the report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the
Group as at 31 March 2007 and of the Group’s loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

CCIF CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 20 June 2007

Chan Wai Dune, Charles
Practising Certificate Number PO0712
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Consolidated Income Statement 4 A W as %

For the Year Ended 31 March 2007 HHZ - ZTT+F=A=+—HILFE

2007 2006
—ETLtHF ZEERF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
M &t FET F&T
Turnover EER 6 443,588 358,650
Cost of sales HEXRAR (348,164) (276,363)
Gross profit £ F) 95,424 82,287
Other revenue H ol 25 6 7,408 1,775
Selling and distribution costs $HE R HK AR (65,370) (92,359)
General and administrative expenses — R ERITHRAX (45,505) (52,467)
Other operating expenses H b 48 & F 2 (7) (3,770)
Loss from operations K EE (8,050) (64,534)
Finance costs A& KA 8 (666) (144)
Gain on partial disposal of interest HE—FHHEA A
in a subsidiary B0 2 W — 6,009
Loss before taxation B %1 Bl /&5 18 9 (8,716) (58,669)
Taxation T I8 11 (7,231) (2,759)
Loss for the year FAEE (15,947) (61,428)
Attributable to: EER
Equity holders of the Company RARERFEEA 12 (21,457) (59,901)
Minority interests B R 5,510 (1,527)
(15,947) (61,428)
Dividends f% B 13 — —
Loss per share BREE 14
Basic BN (3.22) centsfil ~ (9.11) centsfll
Diluted BE N/ATERA  (9.11) centsil

The notes on pages 41 to 90 form an integral part of these FMEFEZWE DM EMBREK 2 H P I
financial statements. % o
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Balance Sheets BE & &%

As at 31 March 2007 R=ZTZT+tF=A=+—H

Group Company
rEH KA T
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELE —_TTF ZEBEELFE —_TTREF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
ff &% FET FEIT FET FAET
Non-current assets I RBEE
Goodwill EES 15 250 177 — —
Property, plant and equipment M - B REE 16 19,978 23,019 — —
Deferred tax assets EEREE E 24 — 366 — —
Investment in subsidiaries REBRARIZEZE 17 — — 4 3,663
20,228 23,562 4 3,663
Current assets REBEE
Inventories EE 18 15,864 10,158 — —
Due from subsidiaries o NGIEA 17 — — 18,104 31,616
Due from minority shareholders — J& U 2> %IHX%/TA 19 10,327 — — —
Prepayments, deposits and TENFIE - BE
other receivables K H i & W 3R 18 16,863 17,004 114 419
Trade receivables fE U & 5508 20 24,678 25,258 — —
Cash and bank balances fﬁi&fﬁﬁ & BR 21 20,533 21,005 314 582
88,265 73,425 18,532 32,617
Current liabilities REBEE
Bank borrowings RITEE 25 10,110 — — —
Due to a director ﬁ@iﬁ—%%%%&lﬁ 22 5,585 2,953 5,585 2,953
Due to subsidiaries JE A5H B /BB & & 3K 17 — — 4,903 2,338
Due to minority shareholders A %IHX%/TA 19 — 16,385 — —
Trade payables N E 5 %IE 23 16,312 15,534 — —
Obligations under finance leases & & 0 & A& & 26 834 — — —
Deferred income 5 FE WA 23,415 22,166 — —
Other payables and accruals H b fE S FRIE R 22,827 3,620 939 941
FEET 3R IE
Taxation payable FE AT B 18 3,470 642 — —
82,553 61,300 11,427 6,232
Net current assets REBEERE 5,712 12,125 7,105 26,385
Total assets less current liabilites EEHAERAE A E 25,940 35,687 7,109 30,048
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Obligations under finance leases Bt & & & 4& 26 232 — — —
Net assets BEEFH 25,708 35,687 7,109 30,048
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Balance Sheets BE & &%

As at March 2007 R=ZT+LF=A=+—H

Group Company
rEE AN
2007 2006 2007 2006
TE2ELF —TTRF ZBBLHFE —TTRF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
Kt &t FET FET FET FET
Capital and reserves EXRRHE
Share capital AR A% 27 6,669 6,669 6,669 6,669
Reserves ] 29 2,403 23,687 440 23,379
Equity attributable to equity KAFESE
holders of the Company BEAEGESR 9,072 30,356 7,109 30,048
Minority interests SRR ER 16,636 5,331 — —
Total equity R 25,708 35,687 7,109 30,048

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on  EFE@R_TTLFNA - BHHERBERETIE -
20 June 2007.

On behalf of the board

REREFS

Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie
ik X i REE

Director Director

BF BF

The notes on pages 41 to 90 form an integral part of these S 41E 5908 2 M st H It S K RE 2 H &
financial statements. s
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the Year Ended 31 March 2007 HHZ - ET+F=A=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

= A % A
/4/?1:1 jﬁfﬁx

ARRREERARL
Employee Retained
share-based  Statutory profits/
Share Share  Merger  Exchange compensation ~ surplus  Capital (Accumulated Minority Total
capitl  premium  reserve  reserves  reserve  reserve  reserve  losses) Total interests equity
EERH 8
EC R Eil/ 5
e RHEE afEE EXERE i LEE EAERE (BHFR) & REER EnlE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T FiEn FiEn Fin Fién FiEn Fin Fin Fin Fin T
At 1 April 2005 RZZERE
mA-A 6,569 41,527 (3,652 12 - — - 46,945 91,401 (42) 91,359
Placing of new shares BEHR 100 3,900 - - - - - - 4,000 - 4,000
Share issuance costs R ERA - (85) = = = = = = (85) = (85)
Equity settled share-based ~ E&XHZ
{ransactions RIS - - - - 219 - - - 2219 - 2219
Loss for the year EnEE - - - - = = — (59901 (9901  (1527) (61,428
Transfer EE - - - - 395 - (395) = - -
Exchange adjustments EXAE = = = (56) = 4 = = (52) (8) (60)
Acquisition of a subsidiary KB —-EHELR - - - - - - = = = 1,963 1,963
Equity contribution by bekE
minority shareholders ENER - - - - - - - - - 4,945 4,945
Dividends k&
— 2005 final dividend —IZ%%1f%
~HERE - - - - - - - (20 (1) - (19
At 31 March 2006 RZEENE
=h=t-H 6,669 45,342 (3,652 (44) 2,219 399 - (20,577) 30,356 5331 35,687
At 1 April 2006 RZZERE
mA-A 6,669 45,342 (3.652) (44) 2,219 399 = (20,577) 30,356 5331 35,687
Increase in capital reserve EREEEN - - - - - - 100 - 100 % 195
(Loss)/profit for the year En(ER) /g - - - - - - — (4] 1457 5510 (15,947)
Share options forfeited R ERE - - - - (462) = = 16 = = =
Transfer g3 - - - — — 2 - ) = = =
Exchange adjustments EXAE - - - 5 - 18 - - i3 236 309
Equity contribution by PERE
minority shareholders EANER - - - - - - - - - 5391 5391
Reduction in minority interests  REE
on acquisition of additional  —FEMEAF
interest in a subsidiary by~ BOMERB LG
the Group e - - - - - - - - - 73 IE]
At 31 March 2007 RIBEtE
ZA=t-H 6,069 4538 (3,652 11 1,757 444 100 (41,599) 9,072 16,636 25,708

The notes on pages 41 to 90 form an integral part of these

financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 4248382 &%

For the Year Ended 31 March 2007 HE T T +tF=A=+—HBILtFE

2007 2006
—ETLF —EETRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) REFHHERSHRA (Rd) FHE
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation B % A & 18 (8,716) (58,669)
Adjustments for: LA
Depreciation e 9,084 10,276
Employee share option costs & 8 & AR i Bk AR — 2,219
Gain on disposal of property, ﬁ%%% - 2R
plant and equipment 2 Wz (427) —
Gain on partial disposal of tb”%—F'EJ Bt 8 2~ & B 10 #E =
interest in a subsidiary 2 Wz — (6,009)
Impairment on amount due from JEU — & D HAR R
a minority shareholder RIEZ B — 3,000
Impairment on trade receivables B E 5 I8 2R E 7 128
Interest income F 2 WA (125) 61)
Interest expenses FERXZ 666 144
Write-down on inventories MR FE — 643
Operating profit/(loss) before EEESEHAZ
working capital changes BEHRF S (FFE) 489 (48,329)
Increase in inventories FEE M (5,706) (10,016)
Decrease in prepayments, TBRRIE - Re R EMERKRIE
deposits and other receivables VR 141 18,593
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables — JEUR & 5 X IE R 2> (3% hn) 573 (20,691)
Increase in trade payables FE B 5 3R IA 8 N 778 12,526
Increase in deferred income 1% FE U A 380 1,249 10,971
Increase in due to a director BR—REER Igi* n 2,632 2,953
(Increase)/decrease in due from Ji& U > BB TR R
minority shareholders (3% ) R 9\ (10,327) 13,369
(Decrease)/increase in due to minority JE 15 8% 3R FR T
shareholders Cm ) 4 m (16,385) 16,385
Increase/(decrease) in other payables H fib & {5 5RO & FE 5T RRIE
and accruals #an, G d) 19,207 (927)
Cash used in operations ARKEXB RS (7,349) (5,166)
Income tax paid B AT P15 A (4,036) (5,186)
Interest received 2 WA B 125 61
Interest paid 2 AE (666) (144)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ARKE TR
ACTIVITIES ZHEFHE (11,926) (10,435)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement #4& £ £ 7t

For the Year Ended 31 March 2007 HE T T +tF=A=+—HILtFE

2007 2006
—EELF —EERE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FAET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Purchase of property, BAME KRR
plant and equipment B (7.868) (11,812)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 30) We ke — R BT 8 A & (B #£30) — 2,214
Acquisition of additional interest Wig— MM EARZ
in a subsidiary R8N 2 (1 —
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEME - B RERE
plant and equipment 2 FT1S k1A 2,540 —
Proceeds from partial disposal HE—ME M‘IE
of interest in a subsidiary E‘B@%?E\LZ?W%?X — 6,000
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ARBEFSZ
ACTIVITIES BEFRE (5,329) (3,598)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES A& E B
Proceeds from placing of new shares Bic & AR 2 B 15 308 — 4,000
Share issuance expenses B 19 317 XX — (85)
Inception of bank loans FRITER 10,110 —
Inception of obligations
under finance lease iRl &SRk 1,645 —
Repayment of finance leases BEMEHE (579) =
Reduction in minority interests on RN B U — 8 A 7
acquisition of additional interest in BROINE 25 B 2 B
a subsidiary by the Group % R4 R 2 73 =
Increase in capital reserve NG R 195 —
Capital contribution by minority LERE 2
shareholders == ) 5,391 4,945
Dividend paid BT RS — (7,226)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM REBMETE 2
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEFEE 16,835 1,634
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRRLEEY
EQUIVALENTS WA EE (420) (12,399)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FNzHRERESE
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR ZEY 21,005 33,454
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXSHTE
RATE CHANGES, NET F (52) (50)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FERZBEERERES
AT END OF YEAR ZEY 20,533 21,005
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF ReRBEEEEY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Rz oM
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHEE 20,533 21,005

The notes on pages 41 to 90 form an integral part of these

financial statements.
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Corporate Information

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
21 May 2002 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law Cap. 22, (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands and its
shares have been listed on The Growth Enterprise Market
(the “"GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) since 19 November 2003.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section of the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 17 to the financial statements.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, a number of new standards, amendments and
interpretations (“new HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") that
are effective for accounting periods either beginning on or
after 1 December 2005 or 1 January 2006. The adoption
of the new HKFRSs has had no material effect on how the
results for the current and prior accounting years are
prepared and presented.

The Group has not early applied the following new
standards, amendment and interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective. The Group anticipates that
the application of new standards, amendment and
interpretations will have no material impact on the financial
information of the Group.

HKAS 1 Capital disclosures (effective for annual

(Amendment) periods beginning on or after 1 January
2007)

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

(effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2007)

HKFRS 8 Operating segments (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January
2009)
HK(IFRIC) — Scope of HKFRS 2 (effective for annual
Int 8 periods beginning on or after 1 May
2006)
HK(IFRIC) — Reassessment of embedded derivative

Int 9 (effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 June 2006)

HK(IFRIC) — Interim financial reporting and impairment
Int 10 (effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 November 2006)

Notes to the Financial Statements 8178 # % ff it

31 March 2007 —ZEZ+F=A=+—H
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Notes to the Financial Statements 1 7% # % ff it

31 March 2007 —ZZE+F=A=+—H

D))

L

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (Continued)

HK(IFRIC) — HKFRS 2: Group and treasury share
Int 11 transactions (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 March

2007)
HK(IFRIC) — Service Concession Arrangements
Int 12 (effective for annual periods beginning

on or after 1 January 2008)

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with new HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include all
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
(including special purpose entities) controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved where the Company
has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
income statement from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

All inter-company transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited Annual Report 2007
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Notes to the Financial Statements 8178 # % ff it

31 March 2007 —ZEZ+F=A=+—H

a)

b)

)

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group’s
equity therein. Minority interests in the net assets
consist of the amount of those interests at the date
of the original business combination and the minority’s
share of changes in equity since the date of the
combination. Losses applicable to the minority in
excess of the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s
equity are allocated against the interests of the Group
except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation and is able to make an additional
investment to cover the losses.

Interests in subsidiaries

A subsidiary is a company controlled by the Company.
Subsidiaries are considered to be controlled if the
Company has the power, directly or indirectly, to
govern the financial and operating policies, so as to
obtain benefits from their activities.

In the Company’s balance sheet, interests in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment losses,
unless the investment is classified as held for sale.

Goodwill

Positive goodwill arising on consolidation represents
the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities acquired on acquisitions of subsidiaries.

Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-
generating units and is no longer amortised but is
tested annually for impairment. On subsequent
disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of
goodwill capitalised is included in the determination
of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Negative goodwill arising on acquisitions of
subsidiaries represents the excess of the Group’s share
of the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
acquired over the cost of the acquisition. Negative
goodwill is recognised immediately in the consolidated
income statement as it arises.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 1 7% # % ff it

31 March 2007 —ZZE+F=A=+—H

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

d)

e)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of
discount and sales related taxes.

i) Revenues from the distribution sales of cosmetic
and skin care products and the sale of other
health and beauty products are recognised on
the transfer of risks and rewards of ownership,
which generally coincides with the time when
the goods are delivered to customers and title
has passed.

ii) Revenue from the provision of beauty and
slimming services is recognised in proportion to
when services are rendered. Payments that are
related to services not yet rendered are deferred
and shown as deferred income in balance sheet.
Upon expiry of the prepaid service packages,
the corresponding deferred income is fully
recognised.

i) Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis, taking into account the
principal amounts outstanding and the interest
rates applicable.

iv)  Management and consultancy fee income is
recognised when services are rendered.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated at rates
sufficient to write off their cost over their estimated
useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal
annual rates are as follows:

Furniture and fixtures 20%

Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms
Machinery 20%

Motor vehicles 15% — 30%

Office equipment 15% — 20%
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Notes to the Financial Statements 8178 # % ff it

31 March 2007 —ZEZ+F=A=+—H

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

f)

g)

h)

Major costs incurred in restoring property, plant and
equipment to their normal working conditions are
charged to the income statement. Improvements are
capitalised and depreciated over their expected useful
lives to the Group.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected. Gain or loss on
derecognition of property, plant and equipment,
calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item, is
included in the income statement in the period the
item is derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value and is calculated using the first-in,
first-out method. Net realisable value represents the
estimate selling price less all estimated costs to
completion and costs to be incurred in marketing,
selling and distribution.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision
for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade
and other receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original terms
of receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the
debtor, probability that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default
or delinquency in payments are considered indicators
that the trade receivable is impaired. The amount of
the provision is the difference between the asset'’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest
rate. The amount of the provision is recognised in
the income statement.

Operating leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable
as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.
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31 March 2007 —ZZE+F=A=+—H

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

i)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. In preparing the financial
statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each
balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise, except for exchange differences
arising on a monetary item that forms part of the
Company’s net investment in a foreign operation, in
which case, such exchange differences are recognised
in equity in the consolidated financial statements.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included
in profit or loss for the period except for differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised
directly in equity, in which cases, the exchange
differences are also recognised directly in equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
balance sheet date, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
as a separate component of equity (the translation
reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which the foreign
operation is disposed of.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 8178 # % ff it

31 March 2007 —ZEZ+F=A=+—H

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
i) Foreign currencies (Continued)

k)

Fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign
operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in the translation
reserve.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Impairment of assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the balance sheet when a group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

T H At R (F)

i)

k)

S ()

FU B BN T EE A 2 B W AT 2B
BEZAVFEARKEFEZBIINER 2
BENBE UREFRZRITEXKR
B -EEZELZRRNELFERE

o

BB R A

P 8 B AR B A B R R AR 22 8 ) 3
18 -

EERE

REFBEB - AEEHERNEBER
BVEEZREENEERSD A E@H
SFBTREFEELTRERR - Mibat
BEZAREESHINERAE 54
BEZERAESRSEHAKRESE -
B B 18 BN B R R R B X o

EREBENEZRED  MEREEZ
BREEAFTEEZERTT 25T RE
S8 EZFAFZREAETSEBRR
i1 G 2 I A T 2R A {0 R (B /85 48 1 S 28
EZBEEREE © BEE 153 B B i
BASYA -

ERMIT A

E-REEEERAT RSB Z—
T AEEERBRRABRREREER
TREE EREENEREBENIR
RNFEFE - WERBRTEREERS
MEBEEREGHEZRHKA (RAFE
FFABRBEZEREERSBABIRRIN
TRV R MAS IR S MEE
ZE@MBELATEMER) - WEBEZ
AP EFABRRZEREERERHEE
B 2R 5B BV fE 18 28 A

e ©

EFEERERAT —OOLEFH 47



48

Notes to the Financial Statements 1 7% # % ff it

31 March 2007 —ZZE+F=A=+—H

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
1) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of
the four categories, including financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale
financial assets. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace. The
accounting policies adopted in respect of each
category of financial assets are set out below.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
has two subcategories, including financial assets held
for trading and those designated at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at fair value through
profit or loss upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about
the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or
more embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39
permits the entire combined contract (asset or
liability) to be designated as at fair value through
profit or loss.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value recognised directly in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 8178 # % ff it

31 March 2007 —ZEZ+F=A=+—H

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
1) Financial instruments (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. At each balance sheet
date subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade receivables, prepayments,
deposits and other receivables) are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses. An impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is
measured as the difference between the assets’
carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate. Impairment losses are reversed
in subsequent periods when an increase in the assets’
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does
not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.

Held-to-maturity investment

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturities that the Group’s management
has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity. At each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses. An
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the effective interest
rate computed on initial recognition. Impairment
losses are reversed in subsequent periods when an
increase in the investment’s recoverable amount can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-
derivative financial assets that are either designated
as available for sale or are not classified as any of the
other categories (set out above). At each balance sheet
date subsequent to initial recognition, available-for-
sale financial assets are measured at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recognised in equity, until
the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to
be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised in equity is removed from
equity and recognised in profit or loss. Any impairment
losses on available-for-sale financial assets are
recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses on
available-for-sale equity investments will not reverse
in subsequent periods. For available-for-sale debt
investments, impairment losses are subsequently
reversed if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unquoted equity instruments, they
are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition. An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired. The amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the asset and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment losses will not reverse in subsequent
periods.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
1) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The Group’s financial
liabilities are generally classified into other financial
liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect
of financial liabilities and equity instruments are set
out below.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade payables,
other payables and accruals, bank borrowings and
obligations under finance leases are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the
financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition
of a financial asset, the difference between the asset'’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised directly in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

For financial liabilities, they are removed from the
Group’s balance sheet (i.e. when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired). The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid or payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
m) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management are
also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the cash flow
statement.

n) Employee benefits

(i)  Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
leave passage and the cost to the Group of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year
in which the associated services are rendered
by employees of the Group. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

(i)  Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds as
required under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and a state-
sponsored retirement plan organised by
municipal government as stipulated by the
regulations of the Mainland China are
recognised as an expense in the income
statement as incurred.

(iii)  The Group operates an equity-settled share-
based compensation plan. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed over the
vesting period is determined by reference to
the fair value of the options granted, excluding
the impact of any non-market vesting conditions
(for example, profitability and sales growth
targets). Non-market vesting conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to become exercisable.
At each balance sheet date, the entity revises
its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to become exercisable. It recognises
the impact of the revision of original estimates,
if any, in the income statement, and a
corresponding adjustment to equity over the
remaining vesting period.
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n)

o)

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(i) (Continued)

The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to
share capital (nominal value) and share premium
when the options are exercised.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax is recognised in the income statement or in equity
if it relates to items that are recognised in the same
or a different period, directly in equity.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the balance sheet date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences except where the deferred tax
liability arises from goodwill or the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and in respect of
taxable temporary differences associated with interests
in subsidiaries and associates, except where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax
assets and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary difference, and the
carryforward of unused tax assets and unused tax
losses can be utilised except where the deferred tax
asset relating to the deductible temporary differences
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and
in respect of deductible temporary difference
associated with interests in subsidiaries and associates,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

o)

p)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Conversely, previously
unrecognised deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Company or the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditures
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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q)

r)

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, parties
are considered to be related to the Group if the Group
has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the
party or exercise significant influence over the party
in making financial and operating decisions, or vice
versa, or where the Group and the party are subject
to common control or common significant influence.
Related parties may be individuals (being members of
key management personnel, significant shareholders
and/or their close family members) on other entities
and include entities which are under significant
influence of related parties of the Group where those
parties are individuals, and post-employment benefit
plans which are for the benefit of employees of the
Group or of any entity that is a related party of the
Group.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the
Group that is engaged either in providing products
or services (business segment), or in providing
products or services within a particular economic
environment (geographical segment), which is subject
to risks and rewards that are different from those of
other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
reporting, the Group has chosen business segment
information as the primary reporting format and
geographical segment information as the secondary
reporting format.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities include items directly attributable to a
segment as well as those that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis to that segment. For example,
segment assets may include trade receivables and
property, plant and equipment. Segment revenue,
expenses, assets, and liabilities are determined before
inter-company balances and inter-company
transactions are eliminated as part of the consolidation
process, except to the extent that such inter-company
balances and transactions are between group
companies within a single segment. Inter-segment
pricing is based on similar terms as those available to
other external parties.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
r) Segment reporting (Continued)

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the period to acquire segment assets (both
tangible and intangible) that are expected to be used
for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and
corporate assets, interest-bearing loans, borrowings,
corporate and financing expenses and minority
interests.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and judgements that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

a) Property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses annually whether property, plant
and equipment have any indication of impairment.
The recoverable amounts of property, plant and
equipment have been determined based on value-in-
use calculations. These calculations require the use
of judgements and estimates.

b) Write-downs of inventories

Inventories are written down to net realisable value
based on an assessment of the realisability of
inventories. Write-downs on inventories are recorded
where events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the balances may not be realised. The
identification of write-downs requires the use of
judgements and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying value of inventories and write-
downs of inventories in the periods in which such
estimate has been changed.
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Ot

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
(Continued)

)

Impairment on trade receivables

In determining whether any of the trade receivables
is impaired, significant judgement is required. In
making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among
other factors, the duration and extent by all means
to which the amount will be recovered.

Financial Instruments

a)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
debtors, bank balances and cash, creditors, amounts
due to related parties and bank borrowings. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented in a
timely and an effective manner.

i) Foreign exchange risk

Most of the Group’s monetary assets and
liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars
and Renminbi and the Group conducted its
business transactions principally in Hong Kong
Dollars and Renminbi. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure if
necessary.

ii)  Credit risks

The Group'’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade receivables. The management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to the
credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.
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o8 Financial Instruments (Continued)

a)

b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

iii)

Interest rate risk

The Group's fair value interest rate risk relates
to fixed-rate and variable-rate borrowings, as
further details of these borrowings refer to notes
25 and 26. The Group is exposed to interest
rate risk through the impact of rate changes on
interest-bearing bank borrowings and
obligations under finance leases. The interest
rates and terms of repayment of bank
borrowings and obligations under finance leases
of the Group are disclosed in Notes 25 and 26
respectively.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps
to hedge its exposure in interest rate risk.

iv) Liquidity risk
The Group manages its liquidity risk by
maintaining sufficient cash from internally
generated cash flows.

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions
and traded on active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market bid
prices; and

the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities (excluding derivative
instruments) are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis using prices from
observable current market transactions.

Except as indicated in the financial information, the
directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at

amortised cost

in the financial information

approximate to their fair values.
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0. Turnover and Revenue 6. RN g
Turnover represents the invoiced value of goods sold, net HERECEERZEREARETNER
of discounts and returns, value-added tax and sales tax, B EEREREEDN  URRBREHERR
and the appropriate proportion of contract revenue from IR 2 & AW EE DRI -
beauty and slimming services rendered, net of discounts.
Turnover and revenue consisted of: BEENWNFBE
2007 2006
—EELF ZEEARF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FETT FET
Turnover &
— Provision of beauty and slimming —BEBERLREEER
services from slimming centers (i) N 48 88 AR 75 (i) 91,090 77,600
— Distribution sales of cosmetic — 5 $H3H S bk
and skin care products NESE @ 348,249 270,175
— Sales of other health and beauty —HEHEMIRE
products REREM 4,249 10,875
443,588 358,650
Other revenue H i 2=
— Gain on disposal of property, —HEWE - HR
plant and equipment N % 2 W 427 —
— Interest income — B A 125 61
— Management and consultancy —BEEREAE
fee incomes A 4,017 407
— Others — HAth 2,839 1,307
7,408 1,775
Total revenue W 25 48 58 450,996 360,425
(i)  During the year ended 31 March 2007, revenue arising (i) HA@Z:% EZ+F=A=+—HIEFE
from provision of beauty and slimming services from C BB OIREEE REEBRGA
slimming centers included revenue of approximately Eizuﬂlﬁn@%%hfﬁﬂﬂkzaﬁﬁﬁ
HK$13,357,000 (2006: HK$7,758,000) from expired NHIRBEE (EEORBERKAES A
prepaid service packages for services not yet rendered, B ASEABRE®R) Ka
the contracts of which lapsed after six months from 13,357,000 ;t ( = & Z X :
the date of purchase of the service packages. 7,758,000 L) °
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Segment Information

The Group's principal activities comprise the following three

business segments:

—  provision of beauty and slimming services from

slimming centres

— distribution sales of comestic and skin care products

— sales of other health and beauty products

a) Business segments

K

AEBZIEXBHANT=

a) XEXoE

Year ended 31 March 2007
HZ-_ZZtE=-FA=1+—-HILEE

7 6 35 S AL ik I o EE am
HEEMRBREXTER

E %% 088

BHEP O REXTREBRY

Sales of
Provision other
of beauty health and
and beauty
slimming products
Distribution services HEHM
sales RMEEARRK R % Elimination Group
SHEHEE AR 2 XBEM 1 8 ZIKEI
HK$'009 HK$'009 HK$'009 HK$'009 HK$'009
FET FET FET FET FET
Turnover ]
External sales HNEBEH & 348,249 91,090 4,249 — 443,588
Inter-segment sales DERHEE — — 1,490 (1,490) —
Total revenue gy ks 348,249 91,090 5,739 (1,490) 443,588
Segment profit/(loss) KERF (BE) 331 1,973 (570) 1,734
Unallocated corporate expenses 7 % fit 22 &) i 3% (17,192)
Unallocated corporate RHOBEA A
other revenue H o = 7,408
Loss from operations K E e (8,050)
Finance costs B A (666)
Loss before taxation B B B /&5 18 (8,716)
Taxation I (7,231)
Loss after taxation BrE2E B (15,947)
Minority interests DR R (5,510)
Loss attributable to equity RARERFEAA
holders of the Company fEiLEE (21,457)
Segment assets HDEEE
— Property, plant and — W R
equipment K& 3,889 14,700 73 18,662
— Other assets —HEE 63,567 14,226 4,372 82,165
Unallocated corporate assets KD B QA BE 7,666
Total assets BERR 108,493
Segment liabilities SREE (41,737) (32,958) (779) (75,474)
Unallocated corporate liabilities &% B A 7 & & (7,311)
Total liabilities BEAERS (82,785)
Capital expenditure BARS
— Segment capital — D HER
expenditure 3 1,940 5,856 55 7,851
— Unallocated corporate — KHEERAE
capital expenditure EWNGET 17
7,868
Depreciation e .
— Segment depreciation — D EWE 934 7,553 144 8,631
— Unallocated corporate — KRAERA
depreciation e 453
9,084

60
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Segment Information (Continued)

a) Business segments (Continued)

. AHER (B

a) X¥BaE(HE)

Year ended 31 March 2006
HE-_ZTARF=-A=1+—HILEE

Sales of
other
Provision of  health and
beauty and beauty
slimming products
Distribution services  HEEAM
sales REEAR R4 %  Elimination Group
SIHEE HERE 2 EDEL 1 84 rEHE
HKS'000  HKS'000 ~ HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
BT TET BT TET TET
Turnover R
External sales SNEREHE 270,175 77,600 10,875 — 358,650
Inter-segment sales HEEEE = = 2,540 (2,540) =
Total revenue W &5 8 58 270,175 77,600 13,415 (2,540) 358,650
Segment profit/(loss) S (EE) 4,851 (47,360) (8,806) (51,315)
Unallocated corporate expenses = % it 22 7] 5 32 (14,994)
Unallocated corporate 7 /N
other revenue H A W &= 1,775
Loss from operations R EE (64,534)
Finance costs il & AR N (144)
Gain on partial disposal of HE— B AR E
interest in a subsidiary PR 2 W 25 6,009
Loss before taxation B i Bl B 18 (58,669)
Taxation BIE (2,759)
Loss after taxation bR i 12 B 18 (61,428)
Minority interests DB R 1,527
Loss attributable to equity RRAERFHFEA
holders of the Company JEAE 18 (59,901)
Segment assets DHEEE
— Property, plant and e/ ERR
equipment & E] 2,790 16,494 194 19,478
— Other assets — Hi&E 44,213 16,023 8,233 68,469
Unallocated corporate assets KD E QA BE 9,040
Total assets BELT 96,987
Segment liabilities HEEE (31,194) (23,150) (2,377) (56,721)
Unallocated corporate liabilities &% A 7] & & (4,579)
Total liabilities BREER (61,300)
Capital expenditure BARS
— Segment capital — P HER
expenditure F X 3,613 6,915 6 10,534
— Unallocated corporate — ROBAFER
capital expenditure % 1,278
11,812
Depreciation wE .
— Segment depreciation — DR E . 862 6,944 289 8,095
— Unallocated corporate — KRAERENE
depreciation 2,181
10,276
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Segment Information (Continued)

b) Geographical segments

The following tables present revenue, results and
certain assets, liabilities and expenditure information
for the Group’s geographical segments.

(b) HE D HE

TREJNAREBERE MK DRz W
XBEURETEE BERMAXZE

% o

Year ended 31 March 2007
BE-ZZEtE=-A=1+—HLEE

Mainland
China Hong Kong Group
A Bl K pE '8 rEHE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHET FET
Segment revenue pol L
Turnover EER 393,839 49,749 443,588
Segment profit/(loss) DB F S (EE) 17,244 (5,510) 11,734
Segment assets DHEEE 78,004 30,489 108,493
Capital expenditure BARRX 4,120 3,748 7,868
Year ended 31 March 2006
BHE_ZZT F=A=+—HLFE
Mainland
China Hong Kong Group
B K B BB PINCS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FAET
Segment revenue pol LG
Turnover EER 284,607 74,043 358,650
Segment profit/(loss) SRR, (BE) 569 (51,884) (51,315)
Segment assets DEEE 58,655 38,332 96,987
Capital expenditure NG 9,172 2,640 11,812
S. Finance Costs il & i A
2007 2006
—EELHF —ETRE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FETT FAET
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEF B 314 —
Interest on other borrowings BARAFEFRNEEZ
repayable within five years HiEE 2B 72 —
Interest on amount due to a director &t — % & = 38 2 F| 8 220 144
Finance charges on obligations MEHEREZVBEER
under finance leases 60 —
666 144
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9.

Loss Before Taxation

Loss before taxation is stated after crediting and charging

the following:

9. B AT 1

BRATERD S ARMR THRIEA

2007 2006
—EELHF ZETRF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET F&T
Crediting A
Interest income A B WA 125 61
Gain on partial disposal of interest S — B A R D
in a subsidiary T 2 W — 6,009
Gain on disposal of property, plant and LEME - MBS REE
equipment 2 W= 427 —
Management and consultancy fee incomes & 3% &85 & WA 4,017 407
Charging 1 B&
Auditors’ remuneration 1% 25 6 B & 842 750
Cost of sales (i) 5 & B () 348,164 276,363
Depreciation e
— Leased assets —-BEfHEEE 189 —
— Owned assets —BEREEE 8,895 10,276
Finance charges on obligations under
finance leases MEHEREZVEKER 60 —
Impairment on amount due from JEU — & D HAR R
a minority shareholder KIBZ A — 3,000
Impairment on trade receivables fEURE B IE 2R E 7 128
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEZHE 314 —
Interest on other borrowings repayable HARAFANERER
within five years ZHMEEZF B 72 —
Interest on amount due to a director N —RESZHREBEZHE 220 144
Operating lease rentals KEHERS
— Land and buildings — T REF 16,060 11,586
Staff costs (excluding directors’ BEKA (TEHE
emoluments) E=M2)
— Basic salaries and allowances —EBEKREF & NKER 38,959 41,435
— Employee share option costs — & B BRI AR — 2,219
— Other benefits — H 2 F 288 149
— Pension scheme contribution —RIRE T8I 5K 954 1,540
Write-down on inventories OB 17 & — 643
Notes : Bt -
0) Cost of sales includes depreciation of machinery (i) SHEK AN BB RITE L 51,875,000 7T

approximately of HK$1,875,000 (2006: HK$1,319,000).

(ZZZT N4 ¢ 1,319,000 L) °
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10. Directors’ and Senior Executives’ Emoluments

10. EFRFRITHARZ W2

a)  Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section a) REBEEB R AHEHIE 16116 M 1E L 3% &
161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as ZEZMeWT
follows:
2007
“EEtHE
Basic
salaries,
allowances
and
benefits-in-
kind Share Retirement
BEXEe option scheme
Fees EER benefits contributions Total
we ENFz BRENS BREHER e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET
Executive directors: BTEE:
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley — REMEL — 3,309 - 12 3,321
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie ~ RZEX4E — 600 — 12 612
Mr. Lee Man Kwong EXHREE — 600 — 13 613
— 4,509 — 37 4,546
Independent non-executive ~ BYFEH T
directors: 5%
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin REREE 33 — - — 33
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing TEELLE 3 — - — 3
Mr. Ho Yiu Ming I EA & 85 — — — 85
121 — — — 121
Total A 121 4,509 — 37 4,667
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10. Directors’ and Senior Executives’ Emoluments (Continued) 10. EHERERITENEZ W2 (E)

(@) (Continued) (@) (&)
2006
—TERE

Basic

salaries,

allowances

and

benefits-in-

kind Share Retirement
EXE5E option scheme
Fees EE R benefits  contributions Total
we ENFlE  BRENE RAGEHER A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHETL FAT FET FHETL
Executive directors: BTEE:

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley — REMEL — 3,420 - 12 3,432
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie — REEX4E — 600 — 12 612
Dr. Cheng Shing Lung, Edwin BB E L — 981 — 13 994
Mr. Ho, Francis Man Kwong ] Z WIS & — 780 — 6 786
Mr. Lee Man Kwong FXRESE — 30 — — 30
— 5,811 — 43 5,854

Independent non-executive BV FH T

directors: Bz

Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin REHNEAE 40 — - — 40

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing FEEEE 40 — - — 40

Mr. Ho Yiu Ming {2 BA 2 & 120 — — — 120

200 — — — 200

Total B 200 5,811 — 43 6,054
Apart from the above, certain directors were granted BB ETESERARBAR
options to subscribe for shares in the Company. The ARG ZERE REE-_ZTTLtFR
details of the share options granted and outstanding TEERFE=A=tT—ALFEATE
in respect of each director for the years ended 31 SRR R AT AR 2 SRS B
March 2007 and 2006 are disclosed in note 28 to the TR & M 3£ 28 ©
financial statements.
No amounts were paid or payable to the directors as REBEE_ZZTLFR-TTF=HA=
an inducement to join the Group or as a compensation T—HIEFEAR  TEENFIENES
for loss of office and no director waived any Z2F - {ERRS| 1 E RS E 2 B
emoluments for the years ended 31 March 2007 and %ir‘ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ@ © N T S E (T (]
2006. & o
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10.

Directors’ and Senior Executives’ Emoluments (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

The number of directors whose remuneration falls
within the following bands:

EHFRFRITEARZ W2 ()

(a)

(&)

NTRHERATIERZESFHE :

2007 2006
—BELHF —EETR
Executive directors HITES
— Nil to HK$1,000,000 — T JT 21,000,000 7T 2 4
— HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 — 3,000,001/ T & 1 1
3,500,000/ 7T

Independent non-executive directors B3 IEHITE =
— Nil to HK$1,000,000 — T AT E 1,000,000 7T 3 B
6 8

The five highest paid employees during the year
included two directors (2006: four), details of whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 10(a) above. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the
remaining three (2006: one) individual(s) are as
follows:

FANREERFEEREMA (ZEF
ANEFE:HNZ)ES EBEFBER L
XHEE10@) e TN =F (ZZTZT /N F
—Z)ANTZBE@ENT ¢

2007 2006

—EELHF —EERF

HK$000 HK$'000

F# T FAET

Salaries and other emoluments e kEMME 2,096 826
Retirement scheme contributions RIRFT &4 % 32 6
Share option benefits B R A 2 — —
2,128 832

The emoluments of the three (2006: one) individuals
are within the following band:

=R (CREREF —B)ALZHER
ATNINER

2007 2006
—EELE  —FTAF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 T £ 1,000,000 7T 3 1
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31 March 2007 —ZEZ+F=A=+—H

11.

Taxation

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for the year
as the Group did not have any assessable profits for the

11. B

year (2006: Nil). PRC enterprise income tax has been ) o

provided at the rate of 33% (2006: 33%) on the estimated

P 48 kB 15

R AN B F R T RS R - B
SHIEHBE(CZTRE
RECERSHRIIZRFRAEE 2
MT% Al Z A ETE SR T m M IA33% (ZEE R

assessable profits of the subsidiaries operated in Mainland F :33%) 2T EAEHBAE o
China.
The details of the taxation charge are as follows: BMTIE 2 BT
2007 2006
—EELF ZEETREF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Hong Kong profits tax BEBFEH — =
PRC enterprise income tax B ERTSR 6,865 2,759
Deferred taxation (note 24) EIETLIE (M F24) 366 —
7,231 2,759

A numerical reconciliation between tax expenses and the
product of accounting loss multiplied by the applicable tax

rates is as follows:

FRIER S s e st e 18 IR DAE A R R 2 SiE B
BRUNE :

2007 2006
—EELF —EERF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FER FHE T
Loss before taxation bR 7 Bl & 18 (8,716) (58,669)
Notional tax on profit/(loss) before BRELATE R (E18) 2 &%
taxation, calculated at the rates TIE - HiRERREBIE
applicable to profit/(loss) in the tax Gl E%IEI*J%T% #, (E58)
jurisdictions concerned Z$R+u Il 1,612 (10,251)
Tax effect of non-taxable incomes EERRBMA 2B G2 (1,420) =
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses FAMBRRASZ 2B 2 387 863
Tax effect of unused tax losses RERAATIEEEZ
not recognised M 6,642 9,621
Tax effect on unrecognised temporary RIERE =
differences 2 TS 5 2 591 2,532
Tax effect of utilisation of previous years’ #) B EEE R RTA
unrecognised tax losses EBREHGEZE (581) (6)
7,231 2,759

EFEERERAT ZOOLEFHR 67
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31 March 2007 —ZZE+F=A=+—H

12.

13.

14.

Loss Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company

The consolidated loss attributable to equity holders of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2007 included a
loss of HK$22,939,000 (2006: HK$1,092,000) which has
been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

Dividends

(i) The Board of Directors do not recommend the
payment of any dividend for the years ended 31 March
2007 and 2006.

(i) At the meeting on 23 June 2005, the Board of
Directors proposed a final dividend in respect of the
year ended 31 March 2005 of 1.1 Hong Kong cents
per share. The final dividend was not included in the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2005 and was accounted for in financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2006.

Loss Per Share

The calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended
31 March 2007 is based on the loss attributable to equity
holders of the Company of approximately HK$21,457,000
(2006: approximately HK$59,901,000) and on the weighted
average number of approximately 666,900,000 (2006:
657,557,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

No diluted loss per share has been presented for the year
ended 31 March 2007 because the exercise price of the
Company’s share options was higher than the average
market price for shares for the year.

The calculation of diluted loss per share for the year ended
31 March 2006 is based on the loss attributable to equity
holders of the Company of approximately HK$59,901,000
and on 657,626,000 shares, being the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year
adjusted for the effects of the share options during the
year.

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited Annual Report 2007

14.

7K 2w 2 15 A ME A 1R

HE-_ZTZL+F=-A=1+—HItFE AQ
RESREAEARGEREEERREEFALA
A B 5 3 R 2 B54822,939,000/8 7T (=
£ : 1,092,000/ 7T) °

77/\

B

e

() EFSUTERRNBE_ZTLR-
TERF-A=T—"BHUEFEZEMK

¢ 3
o }J

- 5

iy R-TEZRF~NA-_t+=HETz2E=
t EEeERnEE_—_TTRF=A
=+t BUEFERERBBRESR.1
Bl e RERB Y EAFAHE_TTH
FZA=T—HIFEEZHBERER M
IRBE T NF=A=+—HItF
Bz BRE -

7 R Js 15

HE-_ZZLtF=ZA=+—BHLFEZER
EAXEE DEAQAE=IFTEAEMN
B84 521,457,000 T (Z T T XN &F

59,901,000/ 7T) R A F A E 217 2 T @Ak m
R 15 1 47 666,900,000( = B T X 4F
657,557,000) fx st & -

HRARARBREZTEESNRFARD 2
FHHE RELE2IBE_TTLF=A
=t+-BIEFEZEREFEIS -

BE-_ZZNF=A=1+—"HILFEZERK
BEEE  DERAARESEAEABGEISR
49 /459,901,000 7T K I 4F A st BE i b 2 &
ZUEHAR FABE BT RRINELSH
657,626,00008 5T & -
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Goodwill 15. &
The Group rEEH
HK$°000
FAET
Cost 29N
At 1 April 2005 R-ZZEZETRFMHA—H 873
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 31) We g — R B 8 2 &) (BYaE31) 37
At 31 March 2006 RZEENF=ZA=+—H 910
Acquisition of additional interests U ig — M B A R 2 B INE =
in a subsidiary (Note i) (K &£i) 73
At 31 March 2007 RZZEZ+F=HA=+—H 983
Accumulated amortisation and ZtBERRERSE
impairment loss
At 1 April 2005, 31 March 2006 and R-ZZTETRFMA—A -
31 March 2007 —EERF=A=+—H
RZZZE+F=R=+— 733
Net book value IREFE
At 31 March 2007 R-ZEZELF=HA=+—H 250
At 31 March 2006 RZEERF=A=+—H 177

Notes:

e -

(i)

(if)

During the year, the Group has acquired an additional
interest in a subsidiary, Bright Rainbow Investments
Limited, by increasing its shareholding from 51% to
100% at a consideration of approximately HK$ 1,000
and incurred a goodwill of approximately HK$73,000.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
carrying amount of the subsidiary’s net assets acquired
approximates its fair value. The goodwill is associated
with the Group’s beauty and slimming service
operation.

During the years ended 31 March 2007 and 2006,
the directors assessed the recoverable amounts of
goodwill and determined that goodwill associated with
the Group’s distribution sales and beauty and
slimming service operations did not have impairment
loss. The recoverable amounts of the distribution sales
and beauty and slimming service operations were
assessed by the directors of the Company by reference
to value-in-use calculation.

(i)

(i)

EFEERERAT ZOOLEFHR 69

RARFE  AEBEBEWE—HHBAR
Bright Rainbow Investments Limited <
FEOMER - RRER 1,000 TS E
PREEFRS1%IEINZE 100% » I 2 A4 &
#)73,00087C - ARREERA 2K
REPN B A ml & 2 F5A 2 AR EE B H A
BERE BEDERAEEXTREER
BEEERA -

RBE_ZTLFR_ZFTNF=A=
T am&r ExCAEmEZATK
EEBYBEEABASE 2D HIEER
ERLBRERBES  BHELERER
B DHHEERITRARRBESLZ
AREEENEARNREEL2EERE
Bt HE o
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Property, Plant and Equipment 16. Y ~ BEZER X
The Group RERE
Furniture
and Leasehold
fixtures Office improvement Motor
HMR equipment Machinery HE vehicle Total
EELEE BRAZERME BE  WELE AE af
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAET FAET FAET
Cost %
t 1/4/2005 RZZEZTRFWMA—H 1,917 3,061 8,824 19,088 2,611 35,501
Acquisition of a Hﬁlﬁ% fel
subsidiary YNE] — — — — 49 49
Additions 2R 210 1,077 2,161 5,184 3,180 11,812
Exchange
differences ERER — 7 — 20 — 27
At31/32006 and R=-ZFZEAE=A=1+-H
1/4/2006 EZTEFEA—H 2,127 4,145 10,985 24,292 5,840 47,389
Additions 1A 883 1,774 2,163 2,876 172 7,868
Disposal & — (19) (120) (4,113) (1,795) (6,047)
Exchange ERER
differences — 39 88 184 308 619
At 31/3/2007 R-ZEZE+tF=F=+—H 3,010 5,939 13,116 23,239 4,525 49,829
Accumulated Rt E
depreciation
t 1/4/2005 RZZTRHFEMA—H 754 1,018 2,261 8,894 1,139 14,066
Charge for the year &R & 409 827 1,778 5,842 1,420 10,276
Exchange ERER
differences — 3 2 15 8 28
At 31/3/2006 and EA:?';/‘Tﬁ*H*ﬂ‘ H
1/4/2006 E—TERFNA—H 1,163 1,848 4,041 14,751 2,567 24,370
Charge for the year & AHE & 473 952 1,889 4,711 1,059 9,084
Disposals e — (19) (63) (2,337) (1,515) (3,934)
Exchange EHEH
differences 3 19 15 77 217 331
At 31/3/2007 RZEZT+FE=RA=+—H 1,639 2,800 5,882 17,202 2,328 29,851
Net book value MR R E
At 31/3/2007 RZZEE+F=A=1+—H 1,371 3,139 7,234 6,037 2,197 19,978
At 31/3/2006 RZZEERF=ZRA=+—H 964 2,297 6,944 9,541 3,273 23,019

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited Annual Report 2007

The carrying value of property, plant and equipment in
respect of assets held under finance leases is approximately
HK$1,455,000 (2006: HK$NiIl).

REREEEREZEEMSRYE - 1@%“‘

REZEEEY A1,455,00008 7T (=

NEEET) o



Notes to the Financial Statements 8178 # % ff it

31 March 2007 —ZEZ+F=A=+—H

17.

Investment in Subsidiaries 17. RMEBAGGZHE
The Company b NN

2007 2006
—EELE —EEXREF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
Unlisted shares, at cost FEMRE - REA 3,664 3,663
Impairment losses BB & 18 (3,660) =
4 3,663
Due from subsidiaries JiE s i JB8 2 =) 5 IE 36,977 31,616
Impairment losses VERE SR (18,873) —
18,104 31,616
Due to subsidiaries N = NGIE ] (4,903) (2,338)
13,205 32,941

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the carrying amounts
of the amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries approximate
their fair value.

The Directors consider that in the light of the recurring
operating losses of certain subsidiaries, the recoverable
amounts of these subsidiaries have been reduced to
the estimated net realisable value of their identifiable
net assets. Accordingly, an aggregate impairment loss
of interests in subsidiaries approximately
HK$3,660,000 (2006: HK$Nil) and amounts due from
subsidiaries of approximately HK$18,873,000 (2006:
HK$Nil) were recognised in the Company’s financial
statements.

The impairment losses associated with the Group’s
beauty and slimming service and sales of other health
and beauty products operation are approximately
HK$13,926,000, while the remaining amounts is
associated with the unallocated corporate unit.

et (FEAT) B /B8 X B FRFE R M4 1R
REREARBREER - ARAEFR
R Y () B A B 30R 2 BRE
BEEREQAFERSE -

BEERE ERETHBARZEEK
KEEE ZSMBAR 2k E S5
ERALEE SR EEFB (A&
R E - At RMTBA RS 2 RE
B3 18 48 %8 493,660,000/ 7T (ZZEE <
o TETT) REWH B A R RIEZ R
B B8 47 18,873,000/ & (ZEZE N
FEET) ERARBZTBERERA

HAREBERREERIEIALEEEM
REREREREBBBZ RERBBLY
/513,926,000 7 MEREE Y EL K 5 B
NAEEER -

EFEERERAT ZOOLEFH 7



Notes to the Financial Statements 1 7% # % ff it
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17. Investment in Subsidiaries (Continued) 17. RMBAGZRE (&)
iii)  Details of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 March i)y RZZEZELF=F=+—HAZFEKEB
2007 are as follows: ARZFBWAT
Issued and Percentage
fully paid of equity
Place of share capital/ interest
incorporation registered attributable
and operations capital to the Group Principal
Name EMALR BROMERA/ AREES activities
£8 EEBY HMER REBAL TEEH
Direct Indirect
B fifE
Sau San Tong Holdings Inc. British Virgin Islands/ US$1,000 100% — Investment holding
Hong Kong 1,000% ¢ REAER
RERNME/BA
Sau San Tong China Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100% — Investment holding
Hong Kong (EV RERR
RERNMS/BA
Smartime International Investment Limited  British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100% = Investment holding
EREREEERAR Hong Kong (E5 REER
RERNME/BA
Sau San Tong China Investment Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$100 100% — Investment holding
Hong Kong 1003 7T REER
KBRLME/BE
Wise Forture Holdings Corp. British Virgin Islands/ US$100 100% — Investment holding
Hong Kong 100% 7T RERR
KBRLME/BH
Brilliant Concept Co. Ltd. British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 — 100% Investment holding
Hong Kong (E REEK
RERNHE/BA
Bright Rainbow Investments Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us§100 — 100% Provision of
Hong Kong 100X 7T management
KBRLHES/BH consultation services
RAEE IR A AR
Sau San Tong Beauty Figure Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 — 100% Sales of health and
EaEBRAE B 10,0007 70 beauty products
HERBRERER
Sau San Tong Healthy Trim Institute Limited Hong Kong HK$18,750 — 100% Operation of a beauty
EaERREBTLERAT B 18,750/ 7T and slimming centre
BREXAREERL
Sau San Tong Healthy Trim Hong Kong HK$10,000 — 100% Operation of a beauty
Institute (TST) Limited B 10,000/ 1T and slimming centre
EaERRABREDL BREXAREERL
(RPE)BRAF
Sau San Tong Healthy Trim Hong Kong HK$100 — 100% Operation of a beauty
Institute (Causeway Bay) Limited BB 1007 7 and slimming centre
EHERRERRET L BREXAREERL
(REE) BERAA

72 Sau San Tong Holdings Limited Annual Report 2007
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17. Investment in Subsidiarie (Continued) 17. RMBAGZRE (&)
iii)  (Continued) iy (&)
Issued and Percentage
fully paid of equity
Place of share capital/ interest
incorporation registered attributable
and operations capital to the Group Principal
Name ERALE BRAMRRE/ AEEER activities
8 EEBY aMEE REBAL TEXHK
Direct Indirect
B F#
Sau San Tong Management Limited Hong Kong HK$100 = 100% Provision of
EFEEBRERAA B 1007 7 management services
REERRSE
Sau San Tong Health Food Limited Hong Kong HK$100 — 100% Sales of health products
BAERERMARAR i 100/ 7T HERRER
SST Advertising Agency Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 — 100% Provision of advertising
BHEEEREERAF &k 10,0008 TT agency services
RERSKERY
Sau San Tong (Shanghai) Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1,000 — 50% Investment holding
Hong Kong 1,000% 75 REZER
KBRLME/BE
Sau San Tong Healthy Trim British Virgin Islands/ Us$100 — 51% Investment holding
Institute (Shenzhen) Limited Hong Kong OE REER
RERNME/BA
Sau San Tong Healthy Trim British Virgin Islands/ Us$100 — 51% Investment holding
Institute (Hangzhou) Limited Hong Kong 100X T REEKR
RERNME/BA
LB-EBEBERAH Mainland China RMB1,241,519 — 95% Operation of beauty
Note (i) (H17()) d 3 AR#1,2415197C and slimming centres
BEXAREEHRD
Shanghai Dong Fang Ri Hua Sales Co. Ltd. ~ Mainland China RMB22,379,537 — 51% Distribution sales of
EBRAGBLHEERRAA H Bl A AE#22,379,537C comestic and
(Note (ii)) (i (i) skin care products
PHBEE MR
EEEM
—ERRIRE (RI)BRAHF Mainland China RMB3,611,072 = 100% Operation of a beauty
(Note (iii)) (Hf &% (iii)) aYsilapei) AE#3,611,0727T and slimming centre
BEXARERHL
—ERAEXE (MM ERAA Mainland China RMB538,702 - 100% Operation of a beauty
(Note (iv) (K1 (iv) H A3 AR #538,7027C and slimming centre

BEXARGEHRL
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17. Investment in Subsidiaries (Continued) 17. RMBAGZRE (&)

(i) LEB—EFERFRAF isa Sino-foreign equity joint () EBE—EREZDERAFA—HERPEH
venture company established in Mainland China for a AR —ZTZTNFEA A +HEHRIZF
period of 20 years commencing from 17 May 2004. INEBRENE  AEEFHE -+

& o

(i)  Shanghai Dong Fang Ri Hua Sales Co. Ltd. is a Sino- (i) LEBRHBALEEBRATAE—FREP
foreign equity joint venture company established in BEANiR —EERAF L AMBKL 2H
Mainland China for a period of 10 years commencing INEBEEDRE  AIKEFHATE -
from 4 July 2005.

(i) —EB/BFRBORINE R A Flis a wholly foreign (i) —EFREERE ORI BRATE—M
owned enterprise established in Mainland China for REBEAR T RENA=Z+HA
a period of 30 years commencing from 25 August R 2N BERZE  AIKEFHA=
2005. T4 o

(iv) —ES#ExE @) BR 278 is a wholly foreign (iv) —ESHEER M BRATAE—M
owned enterprise established in Mainland China for REBEAR T SFRATHBEK
a period of 10 years commencing from 15 May 2006. VZNEBELE  NKEFHAT

F o
18. Inventories 18S. 1#H
The Group rEH
2007 2006
—EELHF ZEEREF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FET
Consumables JH A% fn 54 98
Merchandise SLRK 15,810 10,703
15,864 10,801
Less: Write-down on inventories B WO E — (643)
15,864 10,158
19. Due from/(to) Minority Shareholders 19. JEN < (HEfT) 2 B R H 3% H

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.
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20. Trade Receivables 20. JEWE 5 IE
The Group rEEH
Credit periods given to customers ranged from 30 to 90 — e TEREZEENF30E908 2H
days. The ageing analysis of trade receivables, net of EMRREEEZEKRE S REBZEERDT
impairment losses is as follows: R
2007 2006
—EELF —EERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHE T
0 to 30 days 0£30H 17,323 23,881
31 to 60 days 31Z260H 3,119 360
61 to 90 days 612 90H 3,880 1,017
Over 91 days @918 356 —
24,678 25,258
Represented by: Al
Gross amount @ 24,813 25,386
Less: Impairment losses VAR A= Sk (135) (128)
24,678 25,258
21. Cash and Bank Balances 21. Bl KRITH b
As at 31 March 2007, the Group’s cash and bank balances R-ZZBEZ+FE=A=+—8 - Zli’ilziﬁﬂi
of approximately HK$18,052,000 (2006: HK$12,288,000) T SR1T 4564 4918,052,0008 7T (Z T /N ¢
were denominated in Renminbi, a currency which is not 12,288,000/ 70) A ARBFHE - MAREKT
freely convertible into other currencies. EERELRAEMER -

\G]

22. Due to a Director 22

HEff — 4 # F kI

The amount due to a director of the Company, Dr. Cheung ERAAR—REE(REMBL) B 1575’55&
Yuk Shan Shirley, is unsecured, bearing interest at 5% per A - AFFER5%:T 8 RARERER (M
annum and repayable on demand (Note 35). The interest FE35) c B E_TTLF=-A=T—HIF
expenses of approximately HK$220,000 was paid to the B BEMZEZXZMAFEFREZA220,00074 7T
director for the year ended 31 March 2007 (2006: (ZZZNF ¢ 144,000 7T) °

HK$144,000).

EFEERERAT ZOOLEFHR 75
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23. Trade Payables 93, JEfT B 5 & IE
The Group NEE
Credit periods given by suppliers ranged from 0 to 30 days. HETL T Y EEHAN TOR308 2/ - &
The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows: ﬁm ;AIEZE'E%LY:%\T)%QD—F . -
2007 2006
—EELHF ZEERF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET TET
0 to 30 days 0% 30H 14,933 15,534
31 to 60 days 31260H 155 —
61 to 90 days 61Z290H 83 —
91 to 120 days 91£120H 1,141 —
16,312 15,534
24.  Deferred Taxation 24, HBAEBLIH

(@) The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities (a) FARRBRZELEMBEEERABBZEZS

recognised during the year are as follows: mr

The Group AEE

Accelerated
tax

depreciation Tax losses Total
IEBIEITE REBE Sk

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TBTT TBTT TBTT

At 1 April 2005 R-EZRFEMA—H 183 183 B
Charged to consolidated fEire am kAR

income statement (note 11) (Ktat11) — — —
At 31 March 2006 and RZZEZEF=A=+—H

1 April 2006 E—ZFZRFIHA—H 183 183 366
Charged to consolidated fEire am xRNk

income statement (note 11) (Ktat11) (183) (183) (366)
At 31 March 2007 RZEELF=A=+—H — — —
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24.

o
Ot

Deferred Taxation
(@)  (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred income taxes related to the same legal entity.
The deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet as follows:

24, MBI (%)
(@ (&)

ERANNTOEERNANEHHEER
EREERHBRE  RERELHRE
PR —AEERARH - ARTEHEER
ERAFETAERE NEAEERER
TRRBZELEREEE(AB) W

2007 2006

—EEBLE TETNE

HK$000 HK$'000

FHET F#T

Deferred tax assets EEFHEEE — 366
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIBAE — =
— 366

(b) Deferred tax assets not recognised

At 31 March 2007, the Group had unrecognised
deferred tax assets of approximately HK$16,418,000
(2006: approximately HK$12,153,000) in respect of
the tax losses and deductible temporary differences.
As it is not probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the unused tax losses and the
deductible temporary differences of the Group can
be utilised, deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these unused tax losses and
deductible temporary differences. Tax losses are
available indefinitely for offsetting future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose.

Bank Borrowings

(b) ARERBETEHEEE

R-ZTBE+E=A=+—0 " ~&=EFH
FAIEEE R A MR SR EE 2 AR
JEFE R IE & EE#)/516,418,00008 T (=
TEZNE D #4412,153,00087T) ° B
KA REB R a Al BB AEE 2
RB)ARIEEE KA R E R =% T LA
e - MU ERZEARDAREEER
AR E R =B EREEREEE -
HGEATEREANKEHEEBEREZA
Al BEBERFER -

2007 2006

—EELHF ZTTRF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FHE T

Bank loans repayable within one year ER—FRNEERZRITER 10,110 —

At 31 March 2007, the bank loans were charged at fixed
interest rates ranging from 5.85% — 6.12% (2006: Nil)
per annum and were guaranteed by two companies. A
director of the minority shareholder of the Company’s
subsidiary is the director of the two companies.

R-ZEZ+F=ZF=+—8  BTEZKRE
EENMER585%E6.12% (ZEE/NE : &)
T EMEAREER - NAGE B AR D
YRR ZEEZAZMERAIZESE -

EFEERERAT —OOLEFH 77
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Obligations under Finance Leases

Notes to the Financial Statements 1 7% # % ff it

31 March 2007 —ZZE+F=A=+—H

26. FhEH ERE

Minimum lease

Present value of
minimum lease

payments payments
BREEMSHES BEEMSHEZEE
2007 2006 2007 2006
“EELE —FEREF ZBELE —TTF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FETT FET
Within one year —FR 874 — 834 —
In the second to E_ZERF
fifth year inclusive (BREZF) 236 — 232 —
1,110 — 1,066 —
Less: Total future finance i : R R@MERE
lease charges BRRE (44) = — —
Present value of T EAE
lease obligations 2 HE 1,066 — 1,066 —
Less: Amount due within Ji @ 5t ARBI B ER
one year —F RN E| H
included under 28
current liabilities (834) —
Amount due after »—F1& 5 4
one year k| 232 —

The average lease term is two years. The average effective
interest rate was 6.3% for the year ended 31 March 2007

FHHERARMF - BE_TTLF=F=
T BLEFEAFHERNERE63%(ZF

(2006: Nil). All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and TRF | FAHERTEEERELEE

no arrangement have been entered into for contingent

rental payments.

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited Annual Report 2007
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27. Share Capital 27.

The following is a summary of movements in the
authorised and issued share capital of the Company:

&

KT P AR R 2R R ERTRA BB
EE o

2007 2006
—EELF ZEEREF
No. of No. of
shares Amount shares Amount
KR&HBEE €8 KRHOHHE k]
Note ‘000 HK$°000 ‘000 HK$'000
Kt &t F R FET F A FAETT
Authorised: JETE -
Ordinary shares of SR HEE0.01E T
HK$0.01 each 2 & 1,500,000 15,000 1,500,000 15,000
Issued and fully paid: EZTEHE -
Ordinary shares of SFREE0.01 T
HK$0.01 each Z &Rk
At 1 April RImA—B 666,900 6,669 656,900 6,569
Placing of new shares Bl & 31 A% (i) — — 10,000 100
At 31 March R=A=+—H 666,900 6,669 666,900 6,669
(i)  On 27 February 2006, the Company entered into a () RZBEZEXRF_AZ++H  KXQFE

placing agreement for placing of 10,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company of HK$0.4 each with the
proceeds of approximately HK$4,000,000 before
expenses. Details of the share placing was set out in
the company’s announcement dated 28 February
2006.

Share Options

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) on 4 November 2003. The purpose
of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company to
grant options to eligible participants as incentives or rewards
for their contribution or potential contribution to the
Company and/or any of its subsidiaries. Eligible participants
of the Share Option Scheme include full-time or part-time
employees, executives or officers (including executive, non-
executive directors and independent non-executive directors)
of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries and any
suppliers, consultants, agents or advisers who, in the sole
opinion of the Board, have contributed to the Company
and/or such subsidiaries.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme(s) of the Company at any time shall
not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

VEREWE REROABILEEARAD
7)10,000,000% Z@A%  FT1SRIBL &
4,000,000/ 7T (¥ B B S AT) © B 5 iR
EZHBERARRAR T F_A
“+NBFEZAHA -

Ji I HE

AARR_ZEE=F+—-ANBRHN BB
Peresnt 8 ([RE AT &81)) - MR B 5 &
EAAFIAAERBZEARTHELRE R
BEHARAR /SEEMHBELRERE
BRSO B Bl 2 sx B 2 22 - MBI ARt 8l 2
RERZEANBERARALRSAEERME
REAIZEBIFRBER THRABHSRE
B(BREHT FATEETRBIUFNTE
) UREFEBURRHEARRAR,HZ
EMBARIEHER Z EMEER - B -
REASREERZAL -

1R B8 AR AE 51 8 } 7K 2 B) (T fa] H 0 BE PR AE =1
BIER R BB RITHE ZFTE R EITHFEBRE
ETERHAERTZRONSESHRE » 7518
BTIRBEETRG 230% °
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28.

Share Options (Continued)

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) to each eligible participant in any
12-month period up to the date of grant in excess of 1%
of the number of shares in issue as at the date of grant,
are subject to the Company issuing a circular and the
approval from the Company’s shareholders in a general
meeting.

The exercise price for a share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme (which
shall be payable upon exercise of the option) shall be such
price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine,
save that such price will not be less than the highest of (a)
the official closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange on the date
of grant, which must be a business day; (b) the average of
the closing prices of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the
nominal value of a share.

The period during which an option may be exercised will
be determined by the Board as its absolute discretion,
save that no option may be exercised more than five years
after it has been granted. No option may be granted more
than 10 years after the date of approval of the Share
Option Scheme.

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited Annual Report 2007
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2S8.  Share Options (Continued) 28, JHEIRHE (FF)
Details of the options, which have been granted under the BEERETSRE ZEREFEHI W
Share Option Scheme, are listed below: s
2007
Z85tE
Number of share options
BHREHE
Forfeited/
apsed At
Subscription At Granted Exercised during 31 March
Exercisable price 1 April 2006 during during the year 2007
Date of grant  period pershare H-FExF the year theyear FRRK/ W-F3tE
RHAE i SRRHAEE BA-H ERRE QiR X% =A=t-A
HKS
AT
Director £%
—Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley 10/9/2004 10/9/2004 — 3/11/2013 0.512 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
— REREL “3ImE “RIMEAATAE
AATH ZE-=£1t-f=H
— Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie 10/9/2004 10/9/2004 — 3/11/2013 0512 5,000,000 = = = 5,000,000
— RREAE _ETEE “ETMEAATRE
AATA Z5-=£1-A=H
Other Employees 21912004 2/9/2004 — 1/9/2009 0.489 1,000,000 — - - 1,000,000
HifER —EImE “ETMENAZHE
hAZH ZETNENA-H
Other Employee 5/1/2004 5/1/2004 — 4/172009 0.486 5,700,000 - - (300,000) 5,400,000
EhEs S kS “2INE-ALRE
—AaA “2Z05-A0A
Other Employees 201502005 20/5/2005 — 19/5/2010 0.534 1,800,000 - — (1,000,000) 800,000
AfES ik Z3ThfRA-THE
1A-tH Z3-2ERATNA
Other Employees 6/9/2005 6/9/2005 — 5/9/2010 0.487 12,890,000 — - — 12,890,000
HifER Z3%%% ZETRENASEE
NARA “E-ZFNALA
Other Employees 3/10/2005 3/10/2005 — 2/10/2010 0.400 5,000,000 - - (5,000,000) -
AfbES ZITRE “ERRETAZRE
+A=H “E2-2E+AZH
Other Employees 291312006 29/3/2006 — 28/3/2011 0.19% 3,000,000 = — (3,000,000) -
EEs ZEIR 223, F=A-TNRE
ZRZtAR  ZE—5=AZt)\R
39,390,000 - — (9,300,000 30,090,000
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2S8.  Share Options (Continued) JE I HE ()
2006
“EERE
Number of share options
BREHE
Forfeited/
At Granted lapsed At
Subscription 1 April during during 31 March
Date Exercisable price 2005 the year the year 2006
of grant period pershare W=-ZZLF ErRl/ R-BEXRF
REAH s SREAZEE mA-H ERRA %% =B=t-B
HK$
BT
Director E5
— Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley 10/9/2004 10/9/2004 — 3/11/2013 0.512 5,000,000 — - 5,000,000
— REREL Z2EME “EEMENATAE
NATH “2-=£+—f=H
— Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie 10/9/2004 10/9/2004 — 3/11/2013 0512 5,000,000 — — 5,000,000
— REl%s ZEEME ZEEMENATHE
NATH “E-=f1t-A=H
— Mr. Ho, Francis Man Kwong 9/9/2004 9/9/2004 — 3/11/2013 0.512 5,000,000 - (5,000,000) —
— fIARIEE “3EmE Z2EMENANAE
AARE “2-Z£+-f=H
Other Employees 18/11/2004 18/11/2004 — 17/11/2009 0.748 1,800,000 —  (1,800,000) -
HEtER ZEERE “ZEMET-ATN\AE
T-ATAE  ZREASI-ATLE
Other Employee 2/9/2004 2/9/2004 — 1/9/2009 0.489 4,000,000 — (3,000,000) 1,000,000
HibER “2EME “EEMEAAZAZ
hAZH “EENENR-B
Other Employees 5/1/2004 5/1/2004 — 4/1/2009 0.486 8,700,000 - (3,000,000) 5,700,000
AR i ks “Z2EME-ARAZ
—ALA Z2ENE-AMA
Other Employees 20/5/2005 20/5/2006 — 19/5/2010 0.534 — 1,800,000 - 1,800,000
fE& S ik Z2%,5RR-THE
HA-tH Z3-3ERATAA
Other Employees 6/9/2005 6/9/2005 — 5/9/2010 0.487 — 12,890,000 — 12,890,000
AR “Z%nf “EERENARAER
NARA “E-ZENALA
Other Employees 3/10/2005 3/10/2005 — 2/10/2010 0.400 - 5,000,000 — 5,000,000
HtER Z3%n% Z2ERETAZAZ
+A=H “2-RETACH
Other Employees 29/3/2006 29/3/2006 — 28/3/2011 0.196 - 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
AR ZRERE 23 EZAZTNRE
ZAZthE ZE——%=fZ1)A
29,500,000 22,690,000 (12,800,000 39,390,000
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2S8.  Share Options (Continued) 28, FEIRHE (&)
The details of the estimated fair value of the share HE_ZEEF=-F=1+—HItFERNRK
options granted during the year ended 31 March 2006 HEREZ AT AFEZFBEOT
are as follows:
Date of granted: KH B : 20 May 6 September 3 October
2005 2005 2005
—EERE —EERE —ETRE
HAZ-+H NAKRH +A=H
Number of share options BRkEHA 1,800,000 12,890,000 5,000,000
Exercise price IERE HK$0.534 HK$0.487 HK$0.4
0.5347% 7T 0.4877% 7T 0.4% T
Volatility DEIES 58.41% 53.16% 48.84%
Expected dividend yield EHRE X 3.73% 3.96% 5%
Fair value ~TE HK$282,000 HK$1,632,000 HK$305,000
282,000/ 7 1,632,000/ 7T 305,000/ T
The fair value of share options granted was estimated on P i M 2 A ETIR KL B H
the date of the grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing REHAEEEEAEL MG -
model.
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29.

Reserves 29. f#fl
(a) The Group (a) A&KH
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
KRRREREARL
Employee Retained
share-based  Statutory profits/
compensation surplus (Accumulated
Share Merger  Exchange reserve reserve Capital losses)
premium reserve  reserves  EERf EE reserve  REBBA/ Total
ROEE  ABEE  ERHE GRRERE ARE  EARE (RHER) CE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T T FEL
Note (i) Note (if) note (iii)
fi) )] (i)
At 1 April 2005 RZFTHEMA-A 41,527 (3,652) 12 — — — 46,945 84,832
Placing of new shares REFNR 3,900 — — — — — = 3,900
Share issuance costs O (85) - = = = = = (85)
Equity settled share BaExf
— based transactions ZBEBR S - — - 2,219 - - - 2,219
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - (59,901) (59,901)
Transfer gk - - - - 395 - (395) =
Exchange adjustments EiAE - - (56) = 4 = = (52)
Dividends e
— 2005 final ik
dividend RARE = = = - - — (7,226) (7,226)
At 31 March 2006 R-BERE=ZA=1-0 45342 (3,652) (44) 2,219 399 — (20,577) 23,687
At 1 April 2006 RZFTAEMA-A 45,342 (3,652) (44) 2,219 399 — (20,577) 23,687
Increase in capital ERGREM
feserve = = = = = 100 = 100
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - (21,457) (21.457)
Share options forfeited BR G RE - - - (462) - — 462 —
Transfer 2 - - - - 2 - 27) —
Exchange adjustments ER#E = — 55 - 18 - - 73
At 31 March 2007 RZEZ+E=A=1-H 45342 (3,652) 1 1,757 444 100 (41,599) 2,403
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29.

Reserves (Continued) 29. (&)
(b) The Company (b) Z&AF
Employee
share-based
compensation
Share reserve Accumulated
premium EER®H losses Total
RORE SREEREE ZitF#R &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAT FHT FHT
(Note(i)
(ft &2 ()
At 1 April 2005 R-_ZEZERFMA—H 41,527 — (15,864) 25,663
Equity settled share-based [ 74 &
transaction BN G — 2,219 — 2,219
Placing of new shares i & 5 ik 3,900 — — 3,900
Share issurance costs B B TR AR (85) — — (85)
Loss for the year FNEE — — (1,092) (1,092)
Dividends &8
— 2005 final dividends —— —ZETRERHAKE — = (7,226) (7,226)
At 31 March 2006 R_EENF=A=+—H 45,342 2,219 (24,182) 23,379
At 1 April 2006 R-ZEEANFEMA—H 45,342 2,219 (24,182) 23,379
Loss for the year ERNEE — — (22,939) (22,939)
Share option ER:LE-1E
forfeited — (462) 462 —
At 31 March 2007 R-ZZEZLF=HA=+—H 45,342 1,757 (46,659) 440
(i) The share premium of the Group and the Company () RNEBREARNAEGREIEAND

(if)

represents the shares of the Company issued at a
premium less issuance expenses. Under the Companies
Law of the Cayman lIslands, the share premium
account is distributable to the equity holders of the
Company, provided that immediately following the
date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

Merger reserve of the Group represents the difference (ii)
between the nominal value of the ordinary shares

issued by the Company and the aggregate of the share

capital and share premium of the subsidiaries acquired

by the Company through exchange of shares under a

group reorganisation scheme on 4 November 2003,

as further detailed in the Company’s prospectus on

10 November 2003.
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29.

30.

Reserves (Continued)

29. 1 ()

(b) The Company (Continued) (b) ZEAF (&)
(iii)  According to the relevant rules and regulations in the (i) R IE A E A 2 6 EE R B R A

Mainland China, a subsidiary of the Group required Mo AEE—FM B AR EEE
to transfer approximately 10% of profit after tax (after 17 EAR IR AR B N b 3 R AN 3%
offsetting prior years’ losses), based on their statutory Bz HBAS R RS BE
financial statements prepared in accordance with the HMEEZEEMBRERAEZ
relevant accounting principles and financial regulations Brfiig B F4910% (IR B EF
applicable to foreign investment enterprises in the EBERB)EELELE:S  HEED
Mainland China, to a statutory reserve fund until the EHREEIMEARS 0% AEIE - E
balance of the fund reaches 50% of its registered BAIREEWBEEHTRE—F
capital. Thereafter, any further transfer can be made BEH o
at directors’ discretion.
During the year, a subsidiary transferred approximately FRN - ZHEAREE 27,000
HK$27,000 (2006: HK$395,000) to statutory reserve B (ZZEZERF ¢ 395,000%
fund. T EERERER o

Note to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 30. G B & RN T

Net cash inflow from acquisition of a subsidiary

Wi —HMHE QR 2R RAFRE

2007 2006
—ZEETLEHF —TETRF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FER FHE T
Fair value of identifiable Frk BBl R E
assets/(liabilities) acquired: (BB 2RAFAE :
Property, plant and equipment M - MR RRE — 49
Prepayments, deposits and ENRIE - Re
other receivables Ko E b & W R IE — 3
Cash and bank balances e RIBITER — 4,295
Trade payables e E 5 RIE — (295)
Other payables and accruals H A &~ FRIE K fE 5t R0IA — (45)
— 4,007
Minority interest DEIRRE = — (1,963)
Net assets (Note 37) B EFE (Hat31) — 2,044
Goodwill S — 37
Total consideration BIR(E — 2,081
Satisfied by: A5 A RZA
Cash consideration ReHKE — (2,081)
Cash and bank balances acquired Fri g 2 35 & R R1T &5 84 — 4,295
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents WE—FHRB AR
in respect of the acquisition ReRAEEEY
of a subsidiary mAEE — 2,214
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31. Business Combinations 31.

On 28 September, 2005, the Group acquired 51% equity
interest of Shanghai Dong Fang Ri Hua Sales Co. Ltd.
("Dong Fang”) for a total consideration of approximately
HK$2,081,000. Dong Fang incurred net profit of
approximately HK$3,925,000 and contributed a revenue of
approximately HK$270,175,000 to the Group for the period
since the date of acquisition to the year ended 31 March
2006.

Details of net assets acquired and goodwill are as follows:

K& vf

R-IZBEZRFAA-+NH  NEEKE -

@%%ﬁﬁftmﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ A ([ER#])51%/%

o EREXAE2,081,0008 T - B UEE B #E

;Zé@zéfggfﬁ A=+—BItFE<H

Fﬁ B 4HEE A A 493,925,000/ 7T M AR E
R #9270,175,000 7T 2 W 25 ©

FRBEEFEREEZFIBAT :

2006

— ? /\qE

HK$ 000

FHE T

Cash consideration ReNKE 2,081

Fair value of net assets acquired (Note 30) FTHEEEEFRE 2 A FE (KiE30) (2,044)
Excess of the cost of acquisition over the W B& Ak 7K iR H BT U B8 & & % 48

fair value of net assets acquired Z AV EZE5E 37

The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition during

RBEE-ZZEZARF=A=+—BLEFEBK

the year ended 31 March 2006 are as follows: BREECEERBENT :
Acquiree’s
carrying
amount
Fair value FIRBEARZ
AFE BREE
HK$'000 HK$°000
FE T FE T
Property, plant and equipment W R RRE 49 49

Prepayments, deposits EAHIE - Re

and other receivables K2 H A & W SRR 3 3
Cash and bank balances ﬁi&ﬁﬁﬁm £ 4,295 4,295
Trade payables B E 53R (295) (295)
Other payables and accruals H b 5 IE&FE.#/TAIE (45) (45)
4,007 4,007
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L

o

\S]

Lo

Employee Retirement Benefits

The Group has implemented a provident fund scheme for
its staff in compliance with the requirements of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance effective from
1 December 2000. The pension scheme contributions
charged to the income statement represent contributions
payable (i.e. 5% of staff’'s relevant income with upper
monthly limit at HK$1,000) by the Group to the specified
retirement fund of the individual employees.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the Mainland
China are members of a state-sponsored retirement plan
organized by the municipal government under the
regulations of the Mainland China and the subsidiaries make
mandatory contributions to the state-sponsored retirement
plan to fund the employees’ retirement benefits. The
retirement contributions paid by the subsidiaries are based
on a percentage of the eligible employees’ salaries and are
charged to the income statement as incurred. The Group
discharges its retirement obligations upon payment of the
retirement contributions to the state-sponsored retirement
plan organized by the municipal government in the
Mainland China.

The Group does not have any other pension schemes for
its employees in respect of the subsidiaries outside Hong
Kong and Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors,
the Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities
as at 31 March 2007 in respect of the retirement of its
employees.

Commitments

(@) Capital commitments

(i) At 31 March 2007, the Group had commitments
in respect of equity capital to be injected to
certain subsidiaries in Mainland China of
approximately HK$9,739,000 (2006:
HK$18,023,000).

(i)  The Company did not have capital commitments

as at 31 March 2007 and 2006.
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33.  Commitments (Continued)

(b)

Operating lease commitments

(i) The Group’s minimum lease payments in
respect of land and buildings under non-

(b)

33. K (E)

HEHEARE

i) BESETARHEZE&LEED
@ AREERLIHMEET &

cancellable operating lease agreements are as EEMESHOT
follows:

2007 2006
—EELHF ZEEREF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FER FET
Within one year —FRA 9,193 10,826
In the second year to fifth years E-EF R F 14,417 8,525
After five years hE& 3,579 —
27,189 19,351

(i)  The Company did not have operating lease
commitments as at 31 March 2007 and 2006.

34. Financial Guarantees Issued

i)

During the year ended 31 March 2007, the Company
had given a corporate guarantee to a finance company
in respect of the finance lease facilities of
approximately HK$1,748,000 granted to a subsidiary.
The maximum liability of the Company under the
guarantee issued represented the finance lease
facilities of approximately HK$1,748,000 drawn down
by the subsidiary. In the opinion of the directors, the
fair value of the guarantee was insignificant and it
was not probable that a claim would be made against
the Company under the guarantee, therefore, no
recognition was made in the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended 31 March 2007.

During the year ended 31 March 2006, a subsidiary
had given a corporate guarantee to a bank in respect
of banking facilities of approximately RMB1,500,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,456,000) granted
to a shareholder of this subsidiary. The maximum
liability of the Group under the guarantee issued
represented the amount drawn down by the
shareholder of the subsidiary of approximately
RMB1,500,000. In the opinion of the directors, it was
not probable that a claim would be made against the
Group under the guarantee, therefore, no recognition
was made in the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2006. The guarantee
was released in November 2006.

i)
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(i) RZZBEZELFR_ZTZTAF=A
=t—B ARARTELALE
HEAE -

34. CBHZHMBHER

REBEE-_BET+FE=A=1+—HILFEE
A ARRERETFT—HKBRREL
1,748,000 T2 B AT E R & [m) — &
B 5 A AR A R ER - RAFBRIEZ
HREHEERBE R ERZRE A
BEHNBARARERBRZEBEBLN B
1,748,000 7T c EFRAE * ERZA
FELTAEKX - BRBERAADFR
HERRZAIGEERK T ERARD A
BE_TTLtF=A=+—HItFEZ
B 5 R AE L FERR o

REBEE-_ZEENF_A=+—HIF
B —RHWNBAREME TFTZHEAR
—HREIEITRIE 49 A K% 1,500,000
7T (FHZE R 491,456,000/ 7T) A — & 8R
TEHRARIER - XARIRIETE L E
RzEEAERERZERRERRZ
S EH AR 1,500,000 - EER
B BEBEERRAAEERLBARZA G
ERK T ERBE ST FE=A
=+ BUFEZHEEVBRERELRE
R BHERERN ST F+— AR
@ °
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Qo
NIt

Related Party Transactions 35. BHENLX5

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, RUBRERASEREEN  REEREAF

the Group and the Company had the following transactions RENEBEATENANTRS :

with the related parties during the year:

i) During the year, the Group and the Company received i) FRN - AEBERARRIEARE —HBE
loan from a director of the Company, as further ERSEER £ HERLHMB®R
detailed in Note 22 in the financial statements. =MEEE22 o

i)  Key management compensation i) EZBEASHH

2007 2006
—ETLF ZEERF
HK$’'000 HK$°000
FET FET
Salaries and other allowances e REMERL 6,605 6,637
Retirement scheme contributions RONET &I 5K 69 49
Share option benefit i IR ) 2 — —
6,674 6,686

Subsequent Event 36. A HEFIH

On 11 April 2007, the Company entered into a placing
agreement and a top-up subscription agreement with
Kingston Securities Limited, an independent third party,
for the placing of 133,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company of HK$0.01 at the price of HK$0.16. The placing
was completed on 17 April 2007. The details of the placing
are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 11 April
2007.
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Board of Directors

Chairman

Dr. CHEUNG Yuk Shan, Shirley
Executive Directors

Dr. CHEUNG Yuk Shan, Shirley
Mr. CHEUNG Ka Heng, Frankie
Mr. LEE Man Kwong
Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. HONG Po Kui, Martin

Mr. LI Kuo Hsing

Mr. HO Yiu Ming

Company Secretary

Mr. SIT Hon Wing

Qualified Accountant

Mr. SIT Hon Wing
Compliance Officer

Dr. CHEUNG Yuk Shan, Shirley
Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee
Mr. HONG Po Kui, Martin

Mr. LI Kuo Hsing

Mr. HO Yiu Ming

Authorized Representatives

Dr. CHEUNG Yuk Shan, Shirley
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Registered Olffice

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681GT

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

Head Office and Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong
6th Floor

Prestige Tower

Nos. 23-25 Nathan Road
Tsim Sha Tsui

Kowloon

Hong Kong

Principal Share Registrar and Transfer
Office in the Cayman Islands

Bank of Bermuda (Cayman) Limited
P.O. Box 513GT

2nd Floor Strathvale House

North Church Street

George Town

Grand Cayman

British West Indies

Branch Share Registrar and Transfer Office in Hong Kong
g ] A g £

Standard Registrars Limited
Level 28, Three Pacific Place
1 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Principal Banker

Nanyang Commercial Bank
Yaumatei Branch

309 Nathan Road
Kowloon

The Bank of East Asia Limited
One Peking Branch

Shop 202 & 203, L/F

One Peking

1 Peking Road

Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon

Website
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